

Book of Abstracts

Franco-Moroccan Mathematics Days (F2MDays'23) on the occasion of the International Mathematics Day under the theme Mathematics for everyone and everywhere Faculty of Sciences - Tetouan, Abdelmalek Essaadi University March 13-16, 2023





جامعة عبد المالك السعدي ٥٨،٤٤ ا ٨٥٥٨،٤٤ ا ٥٩،٤٤ Iniversité Abdelmalek Essaadi Université Sorbonne Paris Nord

Honored guests

Prof. Bouchta El Moumni : President of Abdelmalek Essaadi University Prof. Christophe Fouqueré : President of Sorbonne Paris Nord University

Prof. Jamila El Alami : Head of CNRST, Morocco

Prof. Abdellatif Moukrim : Dean of Faculty of Sciences - Tetouan

Prof. Bruno Manil : Head of Galilée institute

Speakers

Prof. Aziz Alaoui : Le Havre Normandy University, France

Prof. Khalil Ezzinbi : Cadi Ayyad University, Morocco

Prof. El Amin Kaidi : Almeria University, Spain

Prof. Olivier Lafitte : Montreal University, Canada

Prof. Bastien Mallein : Sorbonne Paris Nord University, France

Prof. Mostafa Mbekhta : Lille University, France

Prof. Christian Mercat : Claude Bernard University Lyon 1, France

Prof. Benoît Rittaud : Sorbonne Paris Nord University, France

Prof. Mohamed Seaid : Durham University, Royaume-Uni

Prof. Laurent Vivier : Paris Diderot University, France

Paying tribute to

Prof. Layachi Imlahi : Abdelmalek Essâadi University, Morocco Prof. Abdelmalek Bouanan : Abdelmalek Essâadi University, Morocco Prof. Abdelillah Gmira : Abdelmalek Essâadi University, Morocco

Chairs :

Arij BOUZELMATE : FS-UAE Benoit RITTAUD : USPN

Scientific Committee :

Nour Eddine Alaa : FST-UCA Aziz Alaoui : UHN Sami Baraket : U. Tunis El Manar Youssef Belhamadia : UA Sharjah Fayssal Benkhaldoun : USPN Abdelmoujib Benkirane : FS-USMBA Mohamed Benslimane : FS-UAE Mohamed Ekdiha : FS-UAE Khalil Ezzenbi : FS-UCA Mofdi El Amrani : FST-UAE Mohamed El Merouani : FS-UAE Rachid El oulaimi : FS-UAE Zine-El-Abidine Guennoun : FS-UM5 Aziz Hadi : FS-UAE Abdelilah Hakim : FST-UCA El Amin Kaidi : UA Spain Olivier Lafitte : UM Canada **Bastien Mallein : USPN** Mostafa Mbekhta : UL France **Christien Mercat : UCBL1** Benoît Rittaud : USPN Mohammed Seaid : UD-England Mohamed Shadi : UHW-Edinburgh Mohamed Ali Tagmouti : FS-UAE Samir Tallay : FS-UAE Laurent Vivier : UPD Naji Yebari : FS-UAE Hatem Zaag : USPN Abderrahim Zertiti : FS-UAE Fouad Zitan : FS-UAE Mohamed Zohry : FS-UAE

Organizing Committee :

Soumaya Afilal : FS-UAE Souad Amjad : FS-UAE **Boubker Azeroual : ENSATE-UAE** Amal Bergam : FPL-UAE Arij Bouzelmate : FS-UAE Fadil Chabbabi : FS-UAE Mohamed Dakkoun : FSIES-UAE Btissam Dkhissi : ENSATE-UAE Aouatif El Biari : ENSATE-UAE Badr El Haji : FS-UAE Youness El Yazidi : FS-UAE Mohamed ErradiENS: UAE Bouchaib Ferrahi : FS-UAE Hassane Hjiaj : FS-UAE Ismail Jamiai : FS-UAE Brahim Jarmouni : FS-UAE Soufiane Mezroui : ENSAT-UAE Sefian Mohammed Lamarti : ENS-UAE Mohamed Lahrouz : FS-UAE Noureddine Lanjri : FS-UAE Adel Louly : ENSATE-UAE Mohamed Louzari : FS-UAE Mohamed Marzougue : FS-UAE Abdelaziz Moujahid : FS-UAE Chakir Tajani : FPL-UAE Anas Outair : ENSAT-UAE Naji Yebari : FS-UAE Ali Younes : FS-UAE

Extended Organizing Committee :

El Hadi Ait Dades : FS-UCA Adel Babbah : FPL-UAE Anouar Ben-Loghfyry : FST-UH2 Ahmed Benaouda : FS-UAE Ali Bouzinab : FS-UAE Abderrahim Charkaoui : ESEF-UH1 Ali Dahmani : FS-UAE Mohamed Sghir Elyaqoubi : FS-UAE Mekki Idrissi : FS-UAE Rajae Eddahbi : FS-UAE Abdelouahab Idelhaj : FS-UAE Moumou Kettani : FSJES-UAE Hassan Marhnine : CRMEF-Casablanca Abdellah Sbai : FS-UAE Youssef Ouakrim : ENS-USMBA Chafika Zarhouti : CRMEF-Tanger

Organizing Committee (Ph.D students)

Aafar Najoua : FS-UAE Achabbak Ahdia : FS-UAE Ait Dada Alla Said : FS-UAE Bachaou Mustapha : FS-UAE Bakhadda Mohssine : FS-UAE Belhajjam Rafia : FS-UAE Benkhalou Hayat : FS-UAE El Amri Mohamed : FS-UAE El Baghouri Hikmat : FS-UAE El Hathout Mohamed : FS-UAE El khanousse Yasmine : FS-UAE El Hammaji Mohamed : FS-UAE Haji Youssef : FS-UAE Lamtarah Adnan : FS-UAE Malki Latifa : FS-UAE Raiss Inssaf : FS-UAE Sennouni Fatima : FS-UAE Zerouali Rajae : FS-UAE

Synopsis

Greater global awareness of mathematical sciences and a strengthening of their teaching, as well as popularization, are vital to address many challenges of tomorrow and to improve the quality of life in both developed and developing countries. That is why, in 2019, UNESCO made the 14th March of each year the "International Day of Mathematics", also known as the "pi-day", π being one of the world's most widely-known mathematical constants, whose value is close to 3.14.

In this context, the Abdelmalek Essaadi University and the Faculty of Sciences of Tetouan, in cooperation with the Sorbonne Paris Nord University and the International Association AlPaGe, organize the first edition of the French-Moroccan Mathematics Days. During these days will be held a variety of scientific activities involving training, workshops, and international conferences on scientific mediation, applied mathematics, innovation and didactics of mathematics. The last day will be a cultural wealth of north Morocco discovery.

The event will be an opportunity to build bridges between mathematical communities, reinforce existing international cooperation's and initiate new ones, hence contributing to the outreach of all involved parties.

Contents

Ι	Keynote Speakers	12
1	émergence de quelques Branches des Mathématiques : Systèmes Dynamiques et Théorie du Chaos	13
2	Periodic solutions in infinite dimensional dynamical systems: Past and Present	t 14
3	Endofinitude pour les modules et les espaces de Banach	15
4	Comprendre la fusion nucléaire dans les Tokamaks pour une énergie illimitée dans le futur: les points chauds dans les plasmas expliqués par les Mathématiq des équations différentielles ordinaires	lues 16
5	Invitation to preserver problems	17
6	Dynamique des populations invasives et mouvement brownien branchant	18
7	Modéliser ou trouver le bon langage	19
8	Le Fabuleux destin de la racine carrée de 2	20
9	Perspectives de localité et approximations locales en analyse	21
II	Participants	22
1	Développement limité d'une fonction réelle à l'aide des matrices de Toeplitz	23
2	THE DUALITY PROBLEM FOR THE CLASS OF ORDER WEAKLY DEMI- COMPACT OPERATORS AND SOME PROPERTIES ON ORDER WEAKLY* DEMICOMPACT OPERATORS	24
3	Modeling of Tumor Growth and Drug Resistance in Gastrointestinal Stromal Tumor Metastases to the Liver	25
4	Exponential stabilization for a class of time delay bilinear systems of neutral type	26
5	$N\mbox{-tuple}$ sum analogues for Ramanujan-type congruences	27
6	A quantitative and qualitative study for some partial differential inclusions in $\alpha-{\rm norm}$	28
7	Weighted Fractional Ostrowski, Trapezoid, and Grüss type inequalities on time scales	29
8	Optimal Control of a General impulsive VS-EIAR Epidemics Models with Application to Covid-19	30
9	On the study of some nonlinear and noncoercive elliptic problem with Neu- mann boundary condition	31

10	Solvability of strongly nonlinear elliptic problems in Musielak-Orlicz spaces	32
11	On the positive solutions of a nonlinear elliptic equation with a gradient term	33
12	Existence and uniqueness of a mild solution for a class of the fractional evolution equation With nonlocal condition involving φ -Riemann Liouville fractional derivative	34
13	CONFORMABLE FRACTIONAL DIFFERENTIABLE FUNCTION AND AP- PLICATIONS	35
14	On Pseudo-Hermitian Quadratic Nilpotent Lie Algebras	36
15	Existence and behavior of singular solutions of a nonlinear boundary value problem with the p-Laplacian operator	37
16	Infinitely many solutions for a class of fractional equations via variant foun- tain theorems	38
17	Existence result of entropy solution for degenerate elliptic problem without monotonicity condition in Generalized Sobolev spaces	39
18	An approach method with application of Covid data using variational spline functions	40
19	A bilevel problem based on fractional-space derivative for image denoising	42
20	Fractional Output Stabilization of Distributed Bilinear Systems with a Time Delay	43
21	Temporal Evolution of Tumor Growth: A Mathematical Modeling Approach- Simulation and identification of parameters	44
22	Square root problem and Subnormal Aluthge transforms	45
23	Commutative Sub-algebras in Four-Dimensional Absolute Valued Algebras	46
24	On four-dimensional absolute valued algebras with left omnipresent unit	47
25	A Common fixed point results for multi-valued mappings in Hausdorff modular fuzzy $b-{\rm metric\ spaces}$	48
26	A novel quantum information based computational approximate solution of the Schrödinger partial differential equation	49
27	Investigation of Ant Colony with Levy Flight Techniques for Stochastic Com- binatorial Optimization Problems	50
28	On rings with Property $(a.c.)$ and their extensions	51
29	Entropy solutions for some nonlinear and noncoercive parabolic problems in the anisotropic Sobolev spaces	52
30	Renormalized periodic solutions for a nonlinear parabolic equation involving $p(x)$ -growth conditions with irregular data $\frac{7}{7}$	53

31	Notes on complex symmetric Toeplitz operators on Hardy space and truncated Toeplitz operators	54
32	An efficient algorithm based on particle swarm optimization for solving the Cauchy problem for Helmholtz equation	55
33	Simple and fast convergent procedure to estimate recursive path analysis mode	1 56
34	Exponential and weak stabilization of distributed perturbed semilinear systems	57
35	SEMI- COMPACTNESS OF NULL ALMOST L-WEAKLY COMPACT OPER- ATORS ON BANACH LATTICES	58
36	Unilateral problem associated to some noncoercive elliptic equation in anisotro Sobolev spaces	opic 59
37	On multivalued probabilistic ψ -contractions involving orbits in b-Menger space	ces 60
38	A critical Steklov-type problem driven by a $p(x)$ -Laplace operator	61
39	Unilateral problems having two lower order terms and measure data in Musiel Orlicz spaces	ak- 62
40	Strongly nonlinear elliptic problem with -data in the setting of Musielak- spaces	63
41	Weak periodic solution for strongly nonlinear parabolic problems	64
42	Multiplicity of solutions for a bi-nonlocal elliptic problem involving the $p(\boldsymbol{x})$ - Laplacian	65
43	Using the Sherman-Morrison-Woodbury Inversion Formula to solve nearly penta-diagonal Toeplitz linear systems	66
44	On the study of some noncoercive elliptic equations in anisotropic weighted Sobolev spaces	67
45	Management of Moroccan Fisheries with Variable Market Price	68
46	On a <i>p</i> -fractional Kirchhoff-type equation with critical exponent	69
47	Speed Up The Convergence rate Via Tensor Extrapolation Methods	70
48	Study of some non-coercive quasilinear parabolic problem in anisotropic Sobo space	lev 71
49	Adjusting support in CSRBF function interpolation for BEMD decomposition	72
50	On the asymptotic behavior of radial solutions to quasilinear elliptic equa- tions with a Hardy potential	73
51	Approximation in some spaces of analytic functions	74
52	A fixed point approach to stability for a Cauchy-Jensen type functional equa- tion in n-Banach space	75

53	A Metaheuristic Approach to Improve Consistency of the Pairwise Matrix in AHP	76
54	On the Periodic Solutions for a class of Partial Differential Equation with De- lay	77
55	Exponential stabilization for a semi-linear systems with discrete multi-delays	78
56	Central finite volume methods for nonlocal traffic flow models with arrhenius- type look-ahead rules	79
57	Some results on regional optimal control problem for fractional systems with time-varying delays in the state	80
58	STABILIZATION OF SEMILINEAR SYSTEMS IN BANACH SPACE	81
59	Non vanishing and Sign changes of Modular Forms ((ID 63))	82
60	On the Non-negative Integer Solutions to Diophantine Equations $F_n-F_m=7$ and $F_n-F_m=13^a$	a 83
61	Renormalized solutions for some nonlinear and noncoercive parabolic prob- lem in the anistropic sobolev spaces.	84
62	Mathematical analysis and numerical simulation of the Ebola Epidemic Disease in The Sense of Conformable Fractional Derivative	85
63	Ozone Concentration Forecasting Using LSTM Recurrent Neural Network in Tangier: A Comparative Analysis	86
64	Some numerical results of the Brinkman problem using generalised Taylor- Hood elements	87
65	New Hybrid Finite Volume Scheme for Air Quality on Vertex-Centred Mesh	88
66	GENERATION OF 2-D UNSTRUCTURED MESH USING A NOVEL ALGO- RITHM FOR NODE PLACEMENT	89
67	Exploring the Applications of DC Programming in Support Vector Machine Learning	90
68	A NEW CLASS OF WEAK* SEQUENTIALLY COMPCAT AND ITS RELA- TIONSHIP WITH LIMITED OPERATORS	91
69	Strong Nash implementation in finite and infinite fair allocation problems	92
70	Central reversible ring property via idempotent elements	93
71	AHP-Method and its applications: Review	94
72	Network Visualization and Verbalization of Mathematical Problem Solving in Middle School Students: Modeling Problem Solving Networks	95
73	Feedback optimal control of a Multi-Objective problem modeling the wastew- ater treatment.	96

74	Cantor-Bendixson derivatives of the spectrum	97
75	Some Identities of 3-Prime Near-Rings Involving Jordan Ideals and Left mul tipliers	- 98
76	Spectrally starred advertibly complete A-p-normed algebras	99
77	Subspace- hypercyclicty	100
78	Simultaneous continuous functional calculs and applications	101
79	Stability and bufircation of fluid drop subjected to a uniform electric field	102
80	Jordan product and fixed points preservers	103
81	A new approach to improve optimizer performance through algorithms diversification for image reconstruction in diffuse optical tomography	- 104
82	On the Radial Solutions of a <i>p</i> -Laplace Equation with Hardy Potential	105
83	Explicit formulas of the addition law on the elliptic curve over a special non local ring	- 106
84	On Galois Extensions of Graded Rings	107
85	Stabilization analysis of a mosquito-borne disease mathematical model with discontinuous vaccination and treatment feedback strategies	h 108
86	Fixed Point Theorem And Application To Integral Equations	109
87	Existence result for some coupled nonlinear parabolic systems in Orlicz-Sobo spaces	lev 110
88	ON BOUNDED OPERATORS OF BANACH-JORDAN SYSTEMS	111
89	SOME NEW RESULTS ON (ψ_+,ψ) – DERIVATIONS OF BANACH-JORDAN SYSTEM	N 112
90	The Aluthge and mean transform on certain class of bounded linear operator	s113
91	Application of J.F.Colombeau theory	114
92	Combining Non-Classical Method and Finite Element Method for Efficien Numerical Solution of Time-Fractional Diffusion Equation	t 115
93	Numerical methods for an inverse shape design problem with Robin bound ary condition	- 116
94	Improved statistical and machine learning methods for images database classification	- 117
95	An existence result for two-dimensional parabolic integro-differential equations involving CEV model	- 118
96	Positive Solutions of an Elliptic Equation Involving a Sign-Changing Poten tial and a gradient term	- 119

97 Pricing American options with irregular Payoff via reflected BSDEs	120
98 Generalized Solution of Burger Equation	121
99 Generalized Solution of Burger Equation	122
100ESTIMATION OF MISSING ELEMENTS IN PAIRWISE COMPARISO TRIX USING GENETIC ALGORITHM	N MA- 123
101Periodic solutions in shifts δt for impulsive neutral dynamic equation infinite delay on time scales	s with 124
102On the Positive Radial Solutions of p-Laplacien Problem on an Unbo Exterior Domain	unded 125

Part I Keynote Speakers

1 émergence de quelques Branches des Mathématiques : Systèmes Dynamiques et Théorie du Chaos

Aziz Alaoui, ¹

¹ Université du Havre Normandie, France

Abstract

Après une excursion dans un passé plus ou moins lointain, relatant chronologiquement, mais brièvement l'apparition des premières formes de mathématiques, un inventaire (un peu á la Prévert) de certaines branches les plus établies en mathématiques sera proposé en s'appuyant parallèlement sur certains noms célèbres auxquels sont attribués les fondements de ces dernières. L'occasion de citer Al Kashi et son approche du nombre PI, développée dans " Rissalat-al-muhitiyya (Le traité ducercle). Nous insisterons en particuliersur l'une de ces branches et sur son émergence, celle de la théorie du Chaos, dans le cadre des systèmes dynamiques. Cette dernière relativement active se développe á la frontière de la topologie, de l'analyse, de la géométrie, de la théorie de la mesure et des probabilités. Avant de conclure, s'il fau encore le démontrer sur l'utilité de cette discipline et le rôle incontournable qu'elle joué dans beaucoup de dmaines et sur certains métiers auxquels elle conduit



2 Periodic solutions in infinite dimensional dynamical systems: Past and Present

Khalil Ezzinbi¹

¹ Université Cadi Ayyad, Maroc

Abstract

The aim of this work is to present a new method to prove the existence of periodic solutions for dynamical systems well-posed in infinite dimensional spaces. We use the Poincaré map to establish the existence of periodic solutions without compactness of the semigroup generated by the linear part, for that goal we use a new fixed point Theorem that we established recently for affine maps. Several applications are given for evolution equations and partial functional differential equations.



3 Endofinitude pour les modules et les espaces de Banach

El Amin Kaidi¹

¹ Université de Almeria, Espagne

Abstract

En partant de résultats élémentaires, bien connus, caractérisant la finitude du candina d'un ensemble (resp. De la dimension d'un espace vectoriel) en termes de ses endomorphismes, on a introduit de notions parallèles pour les objets d'une catégorie concrète.

Dans cet exposé on va survoler plusieurs questions liées á ce sujet pour les cas des catégories de modules et d'espaces de Banach. Plusieurs questions ouvertes seront présentées et motivées.



4 Comprendre la fusion nucléaire dans les Tokamaks pour une énergie illimitée dans le futur: les points chauds dans les plasmas expliqués par les Mathématiques des équations différentielles ordinaires

Olivier Lafitte¹

¹ Centre des Recherches Mathématiques, Université de Montréal, Canada

Abstract

Un des grands espoirs futurs pour la production d'énergie est la fusion de l'hydrogène, non pour délivrer de très grandes quantités d'énergie comme pour une bombe H, mais pour entretenir une réaction de fusion nucléaire comme dans les soleils. Cela passe par le transfert d'énergie entre un champ électromagnétique et un plasma. Dans ce transfert, les physiciens ont depuis longtemps identifié des modes qu'on pourrait dire résonants, qui sont les modes O (comme Ordinaires) et X (comme eXtraordinaires). La différence entre ces deux modes était mal comprise par les modèles physiques, sauf dans certains cas particuliers. Nous généralisons ces résultats dans un cas quelconque, en se ramenant á une équation différentielle ordinaire d'ordre 2 ayant un point réguliersingulier pour le mode X, et nous 6 pouvons calculer le transfert d'énergie entre le champ magnétique et le plasma.



5 Invitation to preserver problems

Mostafa Mbekhta¹

¹Université de Lille, France

Abstract

Preserver problems is an active research area in Matrix, Operator Theory and Banach Algebras. These problems involve certain linear (or not) transformations on spaces of matrices, operators or Banach algebras...

In this talk, I will give some concrete examples of preserver problems and some open questions and problems.



6 Dynamique des populations invasives et mouvement brownien branchant

Bastien Mallein¹

¹ Université Sorbonne Paris Nord, France

Abstract

Une espèce invasive est une espèce qui s'installe et se développe en dehors de son milieu d'origine. En l'absence de prédateurs, ou de concurrence, cette population déplacée va se reproduire librement, et envahir son environnement, en détruisant les écosystèmes originels. On peut citer de nombreux exemples, le frelon asiatique ou la tortue de Floride en France, la perche du Nil au Maroc, le crapeau-buffle et l'âne en Australie, etc. On propose de modéliser l'invasion de ces espèces á l'aide d'un processus aléatoire simple : le mouvement brownien branchant. Il s'agit d'un processus de particules se déplacant au hasard de facon indépendante, et se divisant pour créer de nouvelles particules. Les propriétés en temps long de cet objet ont été très étudiées. On s'intéressera ici au comportement des particules extrêmes, afin de comprendre la dynamique d'invasion des populations.



7 Modéliser ou trouver le bon langage

Christian Mercat¹

¹ Université Claude Bernard Lyon 1, France

Abstract

Décrire objectivement un phénomène, pour prévoir son évolution, être déjá d'accord sur ce qui advient, n'est pas chose aisée. Plutôt que de nous pencher sur des phénomènes naturels complexes, nous nous intéresserons á des objets mathématiques simples mais évocateu vous deviendrez capable de dessiner de beaux entrelacs, á la mode arabe ou celte, pour enluminer des manuscrits ou faire de jolies frises. Et la mathématique viendra á votre secours pour diminuer la complexité apparente du dessin et vous faire voir la simple structure d'un graphe qui se cache derrière.



8 Le Fabuleux destin de la racine carrée de 2

Benoît Rittaud¹

¹ Université Sorbonne Paris Nord, France

Abstract

Au carrefour de la géométrie, de l'algèbre et de l'arithmétique, la racine carrée de 2 est l'une de ces constantes fondamentales que, á l'instart d'un nombre π ou du nombre d'or, l'on retrouve partout en mathématiques. C'est aussi un nombre qui, durant ses quatre mille ans d'histoire, a été utilisé aussi bien pour des questions esthétiques que pour vérifier la fiabilité des ordinateurs. Enfin, c'est un nombre qui, malgré la simplicité et l'ancienneté de sa définition, garde encore une part de mystère.



9 Perspectives de localité et approximations locales en analyse

Laurent Vivier¹

¹Université Paris Diderot, France

Abstract

La conférence s'intéresse à la spécificité de la visualisation en analyse. On présentera un cadre didactique qui permettra de prendre en compte les aspects locaux, fondamentaux en analyse. Des exemples, proposés à des étudiants au début d'université, seront présentés et étudiés avec ce cadre. On montrera notamment différents phénomènes didactiques originaux.



Part II **Participants**

1 Développement limité d'une fonction réelle à l'aide des matrices de Toeplitz

Aziz Haddi¹, Rafik Bouifden^{2,*}

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: R. Bouifden rafik.bouifden@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

The limited development of a real function is the main tool for local approximation of a function by a polynomial, and also a very powerful tool in several fields of application. Before reaching the form described in the current definitions, the concept of limited development had to go through several non-linear steps and involve the use of various geometric techniques, analytical and algebraic developed by mathematicians of different civilizations from the early seventeenth century until the late nineteenth century. In this work, we discover a new matrix method for the limited development of a real function, which essentially uses Toeplitz matrices.

Keywords: Fonction réelle, Développement limité, Matrice de Toeplitz.

- [1] A.Sierspinka Quelques idées sur la méthodologie de la recherche en didactique des mathématiques liées à la notion d'obstacle épistémologique, Cahier de Didactique des Mathématiques,(1989), 7, 85-86.
- [2] Fu-Rong Lin et al. Fast inversion oftriangular Toeplitz matrices, Theoretical Computer Science 315, (2004), 511-523
- [3] G.Vergnaud La théorie des champs conceptuels, Recherches en Didactique des Mathématiques, vol.10 n 2-3,(1990), pp. 133-170,
- [4] R.Douady Jeux de cadres et dialectique outil-objet, Recherches en Didactique des Mathématiques, 7(2),(1986) 5-31.

2 THE DUALITY PROBLEM FOR THE CLASS OF OR-DER WEAKLY DEMICOMPACT OPERATORS AND SOME PROPERTIES ON ORDER WEAKLY* DEMICOM-PACT OPERATORS

EL ALOUI Abdennabi^{1,*}, BOURAS Khalid²

¹ Faculty Polydisciplinary, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Larache, Morocco.

² Faculty Polydisciplinary, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Larache, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: EL ALOUI Abdennabi dehmanabdennabi@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, we investigate the duality problem for the class of order weakly demicompact operators. Precisely, we give a sufficient and necessary condition under which the order weak demicompactness of an operator implies the order weak demicompactness of its adjoint and conversely. Also, we introduce a new class of order weakly* demicompact operators. In addition, we establish some properties of this class of operators. As consequences, we obtain some characterizations of Banach lattices with order continuous norms or whose topological duals have order continuous norms.

Keywords: Duality problem, Banach lattice, Order continuous norm, Demicompact operator.

- [1] Aliprantis, C.D., Burkinshaw, O.: Positive Operators. Springer, Berlin (2006)
- [2] Aqzzouz, B. and Elbour, A.: Characterization of the order weak compactness of semi-compact operators. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, vol. 355, no 2, p. 541-547 (2009).
- [3] Aqzzouz, B., Elbour, A. and Hmichane, J.: The duality problem for the class of b-weakly compact operators. Positivity, vol. 13, no 4, p. 683-692 (2009).
- [4] Browder, F. E., & Petryshyn, W. V. (1967). Construction of fixed points of nonlinear mappings in Hilbert space. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 20(2), 197-228.
- [5] Benkhaled, H., Elleuch, A. and Jeribi, A.: The class of order weakly demicompact operators. Revista de la real academia de ciencias exactas, físicas y naturales. Serie A. Matemáticas, vol. 114, no 2, p. 1-8 (2020).
- [6] Chen, J. X., Chen, Z. L. and Ji, G. X.: Almost limited sets in banach lattices. Journal of mathematical analysis and applications, vol. 412, no 1, p. 547-553 (2014).

3 Modeling of Tumor Growth and Drug Resistance in Gastrointestinal Stromal Tumor Metastases to the Liver

EL HAMMANI Mohammed^{1,*}, DOUIRI Sidi Mohamed¹, EL HARRAKI Imad²

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Mohammed V, Rabat, Morocco.

² Ecole Nationale Supérieure des Mines, Rabat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: med.elhammani@gmail.com

Abstract

In this study, we examine mathematically and through numerical analysis a partial differential equation model for tumor growth that takes into account drug resistance. Specifically, we focus on modeling the growth and resistance to therapies of gastrointestinal stromal tumor metastases in the liver, and specifically the resistance to two tyrosine kinase inhibitor therapies (Imatinib and Sunitinib). Using medical images, we develop a spatial model of non-linear partial differential equations. This model accurately depicts the spatial progression of one particular patient's tumor. The first part of the paper proves the well-posedness of the model given certain conditions on the initial tumor. The second part presents numerical results from simulations and compares them to the clinical data of one specific patient for which we have complete treatment information, thus validating the model.

Keywords: Cancer Modeling, Tumor Growth, Drug Resistance, Numerical Simulations, PDEs.

- T. Colin, T. Michel, and C. Poignard, Mathematical study and asymptotic analysis of a model for tumour drug resistance, Research Report 8784, Inria Bordeaux Sud-Ouest, October 2015.
- [2] G. Lefebvre, F. Cornelis, P. Cumsille, T. Colin, C. Poignard, and O. Saut, Spatial modelling of tumour drug resistance : the case of GIST liver metastases, Mathematical Medicine and Biology, 34 (2017), 151–176.
- [3] D. Ambrosi, L. Preziosi, On the closure of mass balance models for tumor growth, Mathematical Models and Methods in Applied Sciences, 12 (2002), 737–754.
- [4] H. Brezis, Functional analysis, Sobolev spaces and partial differential equations, 600, Springer Science & Business Media (2011).
- [5] Ferrara, Napoleone, Vascular endothelial growth factor, Arteriosclerosis, thrombosis, and vascular biology, 29 (2009), 789–791.

4 Exponential stabilization for a class of time delay bilinear systems of neutral type

Atmane El Houch

Laboratory of Mathematics and Applications, ENS, Hassan II University, Casablanca.

elhouch.atmane@gmail.com

Abstract

This work addresses the exponential stabilisation question for bilinear time delay systems with neutral type, evolving on a real Hilbert space. Then, we consider the decomposition of the state space via the spectral properties of the systems to discuss the stabilization problem. The stabilisation of a such system reduces stabilising only its projection on a suitable finite dimensional subspace. Finally, an example is considered to illustrate the effectiveness of the obtained theoretical results.

Keywords: Non-homogenous systems, bilinear systems, Time delay, Neutral systems, Exponential stabilization.

- [1] M. Adimy, K. Ezzinbi, Existence and stability of solutions for a class of partial neutral functional differential equations, Hiroshima Mathematical Journal 34 (3) (2004) 251-249.
- [2] M. Ouzahra, Exponential and weak stabilization of constrained bilinear systems, SIAM journal on control and optimization 48 (6) (2010) 3962-3974.
- [3] A. Tsouli, A. El Houch, Exponential and weak stabilization for distributed bilinear systems with time delay via bounded feedback control, Asian Journal of Control 23 (2) (2021) 786-798.
- [4] A. El Houch, A. Tsouli, Y. Benslimane, A. Attioui, Feedback stabilisation and polynomial decay estimate for distributed bilinear parabolic systems with time delay, International Journal of Control 94(6)(2021) 1693-1703.
- [5] A. Cheddour, A. El Azzouzi, M. Ouzahra, Feedback stabilisation of infinitedimensional bilinear systems with discrete delay, International Journal of Control (2021) 1-16.

5 *N*-tuple sum analogues for Ramanujan-type congruences

Mohamed El Bachraoui

UAE University

* Correspondig author: R. Bouifden rafik.bouifden@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this talk we establish supercongruence relations for truncated *N*-tuple sums of basic hypergeometric series. As an application, we give double, triple, and quadruple sum analogues of some Ramanujan-type supercongruences.

6 A quantitative and qualitative study for some partial differential inclusions in *α*-norm

Jaouad El Matloub^{1,*}, Khalil Ezzinbi¹

¹ Cadi Ayyad University, Faculty of Sciences Semlalia, LMDP, UMMISCO (IRD-UPMC), B.P. 2390, Marrakesh, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: J. El Matloub : jaouad.elmatloub07@gmail.com*

Abstract

Let $(X, \|\cdot\|)$ be a Banach space. In this work, we investigate the existence of asymptotically almost periodic solutions of the following partial integro-differential inclusion:

 $\{ x'(t) \in Ax(t) + F(t, x(t)) \quad \text{for} \quad t \ge 0, x(0) = x_0 \in X_{\alpha},$

The state variable $x(\cdot)$ takes values in the Banach space $(X_{\alpha}, \|\cdot\|_{\alpha})$, which denotes the domain for the fractional power operator A^{α} equipped with the graph norm that will be described later. The operator $A : D(A) \subset X \mapsto X$ is the infinitesimal generator of an analytic semigroup $(\mathcal{T}(t))_{t\geq 0}$ defined on X. The multivalued function F is defined on $\mathbb{R}^+ \times X_{\alpha}$.

Our main interest is to investigate the existence of mild solutions and asymptotically almost periodic mild solutions for the system (1) where the forcing multivalued function F is defined on $\mathbb{R}^+ \times X_{\alpha}$. To achieve this, we employ a fixed point theorem that is based on a scale of Banach spaces. Finally, we provide an example to illustrate the abstract results.

Keywords: Differential inclusion, Mild solution, Asymptotically almost periodic solution, Analytic semigroup.

- Gallegos, C. A., & Henríquez, H. R. (2020). Fixed points of multivalued maps under local Lipschitz conditions and applications. Proceedings of the Royal Society of Edinburgh Section A: Mathematics, 150(3), 1467-1494.
- [2] Kamenskii, M. I., Obukhovskii, V. V., & Zecca, P. (2011). Condensing multivalued maps and semilinear differential inclusions in Banach spaces. In Condensing Multivalued Maps and Semilinear Differential Inclusions in Banach Spaces. de Gruyter.

7 Weighted Fractional Ostrowski, Trapezoid, and Grüss type inequalities on time scales

Mohamed EL AMRI^{1,*}, Mohamed LAHROUZ²

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: M. EL AMRI : med.elamri.2021@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper we first derive a weighted fractional montgomery identity on time scales , and then establish Weighted Fractional Ostrowski,Trapezoid,and Grüss type inequalities on time scales, respectively.These results not only provide a generalization of the know results , but also give some other interesting inequalities on time scales as special cases.

Keywords: Montgomery identity, Ostrowski inequality, Trapezoid inequality, Grüss inequality, time scales, conformable fractional calculus.

8 Optimal Control of a General impulsive VS-EIAR Epidemics Models with Application to Covid-19

Mohammed Elghandouri^{1,2,*}, and Khalil Ezzinbi¹

¹ Cadi Ayyad University, Faculty of Sciences Semlalia, Departement of Mathematics, B.P: 2390, Marrakesh, Morocco.

² Sorbonne University, EDITE (ED130), IRD, UMMISCO, F-93143, Bondy, Paris, France.

* Correspondig author: medelghandouri@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, we are interested in a VS-EIAR epidemiological model considering vaccinated individuals { V_i : $i = 1, \dots, n$ }. The dynamic of the VS-EIAR model involves n + 6 ordinary differential equations that describe the evolution of vaccinated, susceptible, infected, exposed, asymptomatic and deaths people groups using vaccination doses and the treatment to the infected individuals. For this purpose, we use optimal control theory to control the dynamic of our considered epidemic model in a terminal optimal time τ^* by minimizing a well defined cost functional \mathcal{J} . Pontryagin's maximum principle (PMP) will be used to establish the existence and the uniqueness of such an optimal control time ($v^*(t), u^*(t), \tau^*$) which at the cost functional \mathcal{J} reaches its minimum. Also, an impulsive VS-EIAR epidemic model will be taken into account with a especial attention since the immigration or the travel of some people which make our study more applicable. A numerical simulation is given to show how can the theoretical study be applied.

Keywords: Optimal Control, Covid-19, VS-EIAR epidemic Model, Impulsive Epidemic Model, Mathematical Modeling, Ordinary differential equations.

References

[1] Z. Abbasi, I. Zamani, A. H. Amiri Mehra, Mohsen Shafieirad, Asier Ibeas, Optimal Control Design of Impulsive SQEIAR Epidemic Models with Application to COVID-19, Chaos, Solitons & Fractals, Volume 139, 2020, 110054.

9 On the study of some nonlinear and noncoercive elliptic problem with Neumann boundary condition

Mohamed Badr BENBOUBKER¹, Hayat BENKHALOU^{2,*}, Hassane HJIAJ³

¹ High School of Technology, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Fez, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco. *

Correspondig author: Hassane Hjiaj hjiajhassane@yahoo.fr

Abstract

In this work, we prove the existence of solutions in the sense of distributions for the anisotropic nonlinear Neumann problem:

where Ω is a bounded open subset in \mathbb{R}^N , $(N \ge 2)$ with Lipschitz boundary $\partial\Omega$, $s_0 = \max(p_i)$, $\forall i = \{1, ..., N\}$, b(|.|) is a positive decreasing function, d(|.|) is a continuous decreasing function such that $\frac{d(|.|)}{b(|.|)} \in L^1(\Omega) \cap L^{\infty}(\Omega)$ and $f \in L^m(\Omega)$. We prove the existence of solutions in sense of distributions for the data in $L^{\infty}(\Omega)$ and in $L^m(\Omega)$. Also, we conclude some regularity results.

Keywords: Anisotropic Sobolev spaces, Neumann Problem, Nonlinear elliptic problem, Solution in sense of distributions.

- M. B. Benboubker, H. Benkhalou and H. Hjiaj, *Existence of renormalized solutions for* anisotropic elliptic problem with Neumann boundary condition, Bol. Soc. Paran. Mat, 2023(41), pp 1-25, 2022.
- [2] M. B. Benboubker, H. Chrayteh, H. Hjiaj and Ch. Yazough, *Existence of solutions in the sense of distibutions of anisotropic nonlinear elliptic equations with variable exponent.*, Top, Meth. In. Non. Anal. Vol 46, No. 2, 2015, 665-693.
- [3] N. Benaichouche, H. Ayadi, F. Mokhtari and A. Hakim, *Existence and regularity results for nonlinear anisotropic unilateral elliptic problems with degenerate coercivity*, J. of. Ell. and. Para. Equa, 8, pp 171-195, 2022.
- [4] A. Dakkak, H. Hjiaj and A. Sanhaji, *Existence of* $T \vec{p}(.)$ -solutions for some quasilinear anisotropic elliptic problem, Rend. Mat. Appl.(7). Volume 40(2019), 113-140.

10 Solvability of strongly nonlinear elliptic problems in Musielak-Orlicz spaces

AZRAIBI OUIDAD¹, BADR EL HAJI² and MOUNIR MEKKOUR¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences Dhar El Mahraz, University of Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah, Fez, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: ouidad.azraibi@usmba.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper we investigate the existence result of entropy solution for some nonlinear elliptic problems of Leray-Lions type associated to the equation $-\operatorname{div} a(x, u, \nabla u) = f(x) - \operatorname{div} F(u)$ in Ω , with large monotonicity condition in the setting of Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces and where the right hand side f belongs to $L^1(\Omega)$ and $F = (F_1, ..., F_N)$ satisfies $F \in (C^0(\mathbb{R}))^N$.

Keywords: Elliptic problem; Entropy solutions; Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Compact imbedding, Δ_2 -condition.

- [1] N. El Amarty, B. El Haji and M. El Moumni, Existence of renomalized solution for nonlinear Elliptic boundary value problem without Δ_2 -condition SeMA 77, 389-414 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1007/s40324-020-00224-z.
- [2] R. Adams; Sobolev spaces, Academic Press, NewYork 1975.
- [3] Ali.M.Ben Cheikh, O. Guibe; *Nonlinear and non-coercive elliptic problems with integrable data.* Adv. Math. Sci. Appl. 16(1), 275 – 297(2006).
- [4] M. Ait Khellou, A. Benkirane, S.M. Douiri, Some properties of Musielak spaces with only the log-Hölder continuity condition and application Annals of Functional Analysis, Tusi Mathematical Research Group (TMRG) 2020.DOI: 10.1007/s43034-020-00069-7.
- [5] Ph. Bénilan, L. Boccardo, T. Gallouët, R. Gariepy, M. Pierre, J.L. Vázquez; An L¹-theory of existence and uniqueness of solutions of nonlinear elliptic equations, Ann. Scuola Norm. Sup. Pisa Cl. Sci. 4 (1995), 241-273.
- [6] A. Benkirane, A. Elmahi; *Almost everywhere convergence of the gradient of solutions to elliptic equations in Orlicz spaces*, Nonlinear Anal. T.M.A. 28(11)(1997), 1769-1784.
- [7] A. Benkirane, A. Elmahi; *An existence theorem for a strongly nonlinear elliptic problem in Orlicz spaces*, Nonlinear Anal. 36(1) (1999), Ser. A: Theory Methods, 11-24.

11 On the positive solutions of a nonlinear elliptic equation with a gradient term

Arij Bouzelmate¹, Mohamed El Hathout^{1,*}

¹Laboratory LaR2A, Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: mohamed.hat777@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, we are concerned with the study of the elliptic equation

$$\Delta_p u + \alpha u + \beta x \cdot \nabla u + |u|^{q-1} u = 0, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^N,$$

where p > 2, q > 1, $N \ge 1$, $\alpha > 0$ and $\beta > 0$.

We show the existence of radial solutions and we present the asymptotic behavior of positive solutions near infinity. More precisely, we prove under some assumptions that there exists a positive solution u which has the following behavior near infinity,

$$u(r) \underset{+\infty}{\sim} \left(N - p - \frac{\alpha}{\beta} \left(p - 1 \right) \right)^{\frac{1}{q+1-p}} \left(\frac{\alpha}{\beta} \right)^{\frac{p-1}{q+1-p}} r^{-\alpha/\beta}.$$

Keywords: Nonlinear elliptic equation, Radial self-similar solution, Global existence, Energy Function, Asymptotic behavior, Equilibrium point, Nonlinear dynamical systems.

- [1] M. F. Bidaut-Véron, The p-Laplacien heat equation with a source term: self-similar solutions revisited, *Advanced Nonlinear Studies*, **6** (2006), 69–108.
- [2] M. F. Bidaut-Véron, Local and global behavior of solutions of quasilinear equations of Emden-Fowler type, *Archive for Rational Mechanics and Analysis*, **107** (4) (1989), 293–324.
- [3] A. Bouzelmate and A. Gmira, Existence and Asymptotic Behavior of Unbounded Solutions of a Nonlinear Degenerate Elliptic Equation, *Nonlinear Dynamics and Systems Theory*, **21** (1) (2021), 27–55.
- [4] A. Gmira and B. Bettioui, On the radial solutions of a degenerate quasilinear elliptic equation in \mathbb{R}^N , Annals of the Faculty of Sciences of Toulouse, **8** (3) (1999),411–438.
- [5] M. Hirose, Structure of positive radial solutions to a semilinear elliptic pde with a gradient-term, *Funkcialaj Ekvacioj*, **39** (1996), 323–345.

12 Existence and uniqueness of a mild solution for a class of the fractional evolution equation With nonlocal condition involving φ-Riemann Liouville fractional derivative

Mouhssine ZAKARIA^{1,*}, Abdelaziz MOUJAHID¹, Arij BOUZELMATE¹

¹ LaR2A, FS, Abdelmalek Essaad University, Tetouan, Morocco

* Correspondig author: mouhssine.zakaria@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, by using the fractional power of operators and theory fixed point theorems, we discuss Existence and uniqueness of mild solution to initial value problems for fractional semilinear evolution equations with compact semigroup in Banach spaces with nonlocal conditions. In particular, we derive the form of fundamental solution in terms of semigroup induced by resolvent and φ -Riemann-Liouville fractional derivatives. These results generalize previous works where the classical Riemann-Liouville fractional derivative is considered. In the end, we give an example to illustrate the applications of the abstract results.

Keywords: Mild solution, Fractional evolution equation, φ -Riemann-Liouville fractional derivative, Measure of noncompactness, Darbo-Sadovskii's fixed point theorem.

- [1] Podlubny, I.: Fractional Differential Equations: An Introduction to Fractional Derivatives, Fractional Differential Equations, to Methods of Their Solution and Some of Their Applications, vol. 198. Elsevier, Amsterdam (1998).
- [2] Baleanu, D., Asad, J.H., Jajarmi, A.: The fractional model of spring pendulum: new features within different kernels. Proc. Rom. Acad., Ser. A: Math. Phys. Tech. Sci. Inf. Sci. 19(3), 447–454 (2018)
- [3] Samko, S.G., Kilbas, A.A., Marichev, O.I.: Fractional Integrals and Derivatives: Theory and Applications. Gordon and Breach, Yverdon (1993)

13 CONFORMABLE FRACTIONAL DIFFERENTIABLE FUNCTION AND APPLICATIONS

Azennar Radouane¹, Sophia Bentahar^{2,*}, Driss Mentagui³

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University Ibn Tofail, Kenitra, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University Ibn Tofail, Kenitra, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Sciences, University Ibn Tofail, Kenitra, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Sophia Bentahar sophia.bentahar@uit.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we generalize the notion of the fixed point and we prove a fixed point theorem for a contraction in **R** using the definition of fractional derivative given by [1].

Keywords: α -fixed point, Fractional derivative, Fractional integral.

References

- [1] R. Khalil, M. Al Horani, A. Yousef, M. Sababhehb. A new definition of fractional derivative, Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 264 (2014), 65-70.
- [2] Manoj Sahni, Dhairya Shah, Ritu Sahni, A new modified accelerated iterative scheme using amalgamation of fixed point and N-R method, Journal of Interdisciplinary Mathematics, 22 (2019), 679-688.

B Authors, Book title, page numbers. Publisher, place (year).

- [3] Sabah Hassan Malih, Salwa Salman Abed, Approximating random fixed points under a new iterative sequence, Journal of Interdisciplinary Mathematics, 22(2019), 1407-1414.
- [4] Podlubny, Fractional Differential Equations, Academic Press, USA, (1999).
- [5] R.Azennar, D.Mentagui, On some properties of the conformable fractional derivative, Moroccan J. of Pure and Appl. Anal, 6(2020), 56-63.
- [6] Olaniyi S. Iyiola, Eze R. Nwaeze, Some New Results on the New Conformable Fractional Calculus with Application Using D'Alambert Approach, Progr. Fract. Differ. Appl, 2(2016), 115-122.
- [7] A.A. Kilbas, H.M. Srivastava, J.J. Trujillo, Theory and Applications of Fractional Differential Equations, Elsevier B.V., Amsterdam, Netherlands, (2006).
- [8] K.B. Oldham, J. Spanier, The Fractional Calculus, Academic Press, New York, (1974).
14 On Pseudo-Hermitian Quadratic Nilpotent Lie Algebras

Mustapha Bachaou^{1,*}, Ignacio Bajo², Mohamed Louzari¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Departamento de Matemática Aplicada II, E.E. Telecomunicación, Universidade de Vigo, 36280 Vigo, Spain.

* Correspondig author: mustapha.bachaou@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

We study nilpotent Lie algebras endowed with a complex structure and a quadratic structure which is pseudo-Hermitian for the given complex structure. We propose several methods to construct such Lie algebras and use a method of double extension by a plane to get an inductive description of all of them. Such a method let us give a complete classification of nilpotent quadratic Lie algebras where the metric is Lorentz-Hermitian and to obtain a complete classification of pseudo-Hermitian quadratic Lie algebras up to dimension 8 and their inequivalent pseudo-Hermitian metrics.

Keywords: Pseudo-Hermitian Lie algebra, quadratic Lie algebra, quadratic double extension.

- [1] A. Andrada, M.L. Barberis, I.G. Dotti, Abelian Hermitian geometry, *Diff. Geom. Appl.* 30 (2012), no. 5, 509–519.
- [2] A. Andrada, M.L. Barberis, G. Ovando, Lie bialgebras of complex type and associated Poisson Lie groups, *Jour. Geom. Phys.* 58 (2008), 1310–1328.
- [3] I. Bajo, Prederivations of Lie algebras and isometries of bi-invariant Lie groups, *Geom. Dedicata* 66 (1997), no. 3, 281–291.
- [4] I. Bajo, S. Benayadi, Alberto Medina, Symplectic structures on quadratic Lie algebras. *Jour. Algebra* 316 (2007), 174–188.
- [5] M.L. Barberis, I. Dotti, Abelian complex structures on solvable Lie algebras, *J. Lie Theory* 14 (2004), 25–34.
- [6] M. Bordemann, Nondegenerate invariant bilinear forms on nonassociative algebras, *Acta Math. Univ. Com.*, LXVI, 2 (1997), 151–201.
- [7] K.H. Hofmann, V.S. Keith, Invariant quadratic forms on finite-dimensional Lie algebras, *Bull. Austral. Math. Soc.* 33 (1986), no. 1, 21–36.
- [8] A. Medina, Ph. Revoy, Algèbres de Lie et produit scalaire invariant, Ann. Scient. l'É.N.S. 4^e série, t. 18, 3 (1985), 553–561.

15 Existence and behavior of singular solutions of a nonlinear boundary value problem with the p-Laplacian operator

Arij Bouzelmate¹, Hikmat El Baghouri^{1,*}

¹ LaR2A Laboratory, Faculty of Sciences, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: hikmat.elbaghouri@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper we study singular radial solutions of the following nonlinear boundary value problem

$$(P) \begin{cases} \left(|u'|^{p-2}u'\right)' + \frac{N-1}{r} |u'|^{p-2}u' + r^{l_1}|u|^{q_1-1}u + r^{l_2}|u|^{q_2-1}u = 0, \quad r > 0\\ u(0) = a, \quad \lim_{r \to 0} r^{\frac{N-1}{p-1}}u'(r) = 0, \end{cases}$$

where N > p > 2, $q_2 > q_1 > p - 1$, $-p < l_2 < l_1 < -1$ and a > 0.

We establish the global existence of positive solutions and we give a classification of radial solutions of the above equation. Moreover, under some assumptions, we show that the positive solution has the following asymptotic behavior near the origin and infinity.

Keywords: Boundary value problem; singular solutions; global existence; positive solutions; asymptotic behavior; energy methods.

- M.F. Bidaut-Véron, Local and global behavior of solutions of quasilinear equations of Emden-Fowler type, Archive for Rational Mech. and Anal., 107(4) (1989), 293– 324.
- [2] A. Bouzelmate and A. Gmira, Singular solutions of an inhomogeneous elliptic equation, Nonlinear Functional Analysis and Applications Vol. 26, No. 2 (2021), 237–272.
- [3] B. Lai, Q. Luo, and S. Zhou, Asymptotic behavior of positive solutions to semilinear elliptic equation in \mathbb{R}^n , J. Korean Math. Soc. 48 (2011), 431–447.

16 Infinitely many solutions for a class of fractional equations via variant fountain theorems

Abdelilah Azghay^{1,*}, Mohammed Massar¹, Abderrahim El Mhouti²

¹ ANLA, FSTH, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

² ISISA, FS, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: azghay.abdelilah@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

This article is concerned with a class of fractional type equation involving an anisotropic operator and potential of the form

$$(-\Delta_x)^s u - \Delta_y u + \Phi(x, y)u = g(x, y, u), \ (x, y) \in \mathbb{R}^n \times \mathbb{R}^m.$$

By means of the variational method and the variant fountain theorems, we investigate the existence of infinitely many high or small energy solutions without the usual assumption of coerciveness on the potential Φ in the different cases when the nonlinear term is either asymptotically linear or superquadratic growth.

Keywords: Potential BO-ZK equation, Infinitely many solutions, Variational method.

- [1] A. Esfahani and S.E. Esfahani, Positive and nodal solutions of the generalized BO-ZK equation. Rev. R. Acad. Cienc. Exactas Fís. Nat. Ser. A Mat. RACSAM 2018;112:1381–90
- [2] A. Esfahani, Existence of solutions of class of nonlinear nonlocal problems involving the potential. Chaos, Solitons and Fractals, 119, 1-7 (2019).
- [3] M. Massar, Infinitely many radial solutions for a nonlocal equation involving an anisotropic operator, J. Nonlinear Funct. Anal. 2020 (2020). https://doi.org/10.23952/jnfa.2020.29.
- [4] M. Rahmani, M. Rahmani, A. Anane and M. Massar, Least energy signchanging solutions for a nonlocal anisotropic Kirchhoff type equation, Moroccan J. of Pure and Appl. Anal. (MJPAA). Volume 8(2), 2022, Pages 212–227. https://doi.org/10.2478/mjpaa-2022-0015.
- [5] W. Zou, Variant fountain theorems and their applications, Manuscripta Math. 104 (2001) 343–358.

17 Existence result of entropy solution for degenerate elliptic problem without monotonicity condition in Generalized Sobolev spaces

Abdelkarim Derham^{1,*}, Badr El Haji² and Hassane Hjaij³

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. Derham abdederham@gmail.com

Abstract

In the present paper we prove some existence results of entropy solution for nonlinear degenerate elliptic problems of the form Au + h(x, u) = f, in Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, where $A(u) = .div(a(x, u, \nabla u))$ is a Leray-Lions, operator defined form the Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces $W_0^1 L_{\varphi}(\Omega)$ into its dual. The right hand side $f \in L^1(\Omega)$, and no monotonicity strict condition is assumed on the function $a(x, s, \xi)$, The tool we use to overcome this difficulty is to investigate some techniques introduced by Minty's lemma.

Keywords: Elliptic problem; Entropy solutions; Weighted Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Musielak spaces, Monotnicity condition.

- [1] R. Adams; Sobolev spaces, Academic Press, NewYork 1975.
- [2] Y. Akdim, ,E. Azroul, M.Rhoudaf; Existence of T-solution for degenerated problem via Minty's Lemma. Acta Math. sinica (English Ser.) 24, 431-438.
- [3] E. Azroul, A.Barbara, M. El Lekhlifi, M.Rhoudaf; T-p(x)-solutions for nonlinear elliptic equations with an L1-dual datum. Appl. Math. (Warsaw) 39(3), 339-364
- [4] Ali.M.Ben Cheikh, O. Guibe; Nonlinear and non-coercive elliptic problems with integrable data. Adv. Math. Sci. Appl. 16(1), 275-297.
- [5] A. Benkirane, B. El Haji and M. El Moumni; Strongly nonlinear elliptic problem with measure data in Musielak-Orlicz spaces. Complex Variables and Elliptic Equations, 1-23,
- [6] A. Benkirane, B. El Haji and M. El Moumni; On the existence solutions for some Nonlinear elliptic problem, Boletim da Sociedade Paranaense de Matematica, (3s.)
 v. 2022 (40) : 1-8
- [7] B. El Haji, M. El Moumni, K. Kouhaila; On a nonlinear elliptic problems having large monotonocity with L1-data in weighted Orlicz-Sobolev spaces ,Moroccan J. of Pure and Appl. Anal. (MJPAA) Volume 5(1), 2019, Pages 104-116

18 An approach method with application of Covid data using variational spline functions

A. Akhrif¹, A. Kouibia^{1,*}, H. Oulad Yakhlef¹

¹ Département Sciences Economiques et Gestion. Faculté des Sciences Juridique, Economique et Sociale de Tétuan. * *Correspondig author: abdelkouibia@gmail.com*

Abstract

The Covid-19 pandemic has affected almost all the countries of the world in the space of four months. In mid-April 2020, the epidemic had already absorbed, even saturated, the hospital capacities of many countries, causing more than 150000 deaths worldwide and seriously affecting the health of at least half a million people. The circulation time of the virus therefore proved to be much shorter than the various reaction times of human institutions, whether hospital, scientific or political. The duration of the latency period, the incubation time, the duration of contagiousness, the duration of hospitalization, the delays between infection and death are all important parameters that must be able to be estimated and integrated into the modeling in order to understand the dynamics of a Covid-19. In addition, one of the difficulties encountered in the study of this pandemic comes from the number of infected individuals because there are people who contract the virus without declaring symptoms, while becoming contagious.

In [3] we present a new method which allows to adjust the statistical difficulty when the statistical series are spliced. Hence, we have studied the scope of different splicing methods in the literature. We have presented an approximation method for statistical splicing of economic data by using smoothing quadratic splines. Finally, we have shown the effectiveness of our method by presenting a complete data of Gross Domestic Product for Venezuela by productive economic activity from 1950 to 2005, expressed at prices of the base year of 1997, also by showing the results of some data of Morocco for different economics activities such as the GDP (Gross Domestic Product), the agriculture, the trade and the electricity generation from petroleum sources of Morocco between 1971 and 2015. Note that this work has been presented in the first version of this conference "ICOSMEM'20".

Therefore, the main goal of this investigation is to approximate the Covid data using the variational method approach, specially by the variational splines, for more details, reference ([1]) can be consulted, and for research works in the same line, reference ([2]) can also be consulted. While as a real application, as we have done in [3], we present a suitable study to Covid data of Morocco and an analysis of the inconveniences on the Moroccan economy.

The information was obtained from official sources, specifically from data bases published by Moroccan Ministry of Health to ensure the highest quality for this study.

Keywords: Covid data, Variational spline, Approximation methods, Application to Economic.

- [1] A. Kouibia and M. Pasadas, Approximation by discrete variational splines, Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics 116(1) (2000), 145-156. A Authors, Article title, Journal, Volume (year), page numbers.
- [2] R. Akhrif, A. Kouibia and M. Pasadas, Approximation of generalized offset surfaces by bicubic splines, Journal of Mathematical Chemistry 58 (2020) 647 662.
- [3] R. Akhrif, A. Kouibia, M. Pasadas and E. Delgado-Márquez, Economic statistical splicing data using smoothing quadratic splines, Springer Nature Switzerland AG 2022, D. Barrera et al. (eds.), Mathematical and Computational Methods for Modelling, Approximation and Simulation, SEMA SIMAI Springer Series 29, https: $//doi.org/10.1007/978 - 3 - 030 - 94339 - 4_8$.

19 A bilevel problem based on fractional-space derivative for image denoising

Anouar BEN-LOGHFYRY^{1,*}, Abdelilah HAKIM²

¹ Faculty of Sciences and techniques of Mohammedia, University of Hassan II, Casablanca, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences and techniques, University of Cadi Ayyad, Marrakesh, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: anwarbenloghfyry@gmail.com

Abstract

In this work we propose a bilevel approach to deal with image denoising problem. An optimal choice of the fractional order derivative is carried out with the lower problem, while the upper one deals with denoising process. An algorithm is also proposed based on the Primal-Dual approach. Numerical results are based on finite differences, which show remarkable results compared to some well-known competitive models.

Keywords: fractional derivative, bilevel problem, image denoising, Primal-Dual.

20 Fractional Output Stabilization of Distributed Bilinear Systems with a Time Delay

Mustapha Benoudi^{1,*}, Rachid Larhrissi²

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Moulay Ismail, Meknes, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Moulay Ismail, Meknes, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: M. Benoudi mustaphabenoudi@gmail.com

Abstract

This research involves studying fractional spatial output stabilization for bilinear systems with a time delay. Hence, we give an expression of control that depends on delay to show the strong, weak, and exponential stabilization of the fractional output under some sufficient conditions. Finally, the computational simulations are taken to attempt the validity of the reached theoretical results.

Keywords: Stabilization, System with a time delay, Fractional output.

- [1] JM Ball, M Slemrod, Feedback stabilization of distributed semilinear control systems. Applied Mathematics and Optimization, 5(1) (1979), 169-179.
- [2] M Benoudi M, EH Zerrik, R Larhrissi, Stabilization of distributed systems via bilinear boundary control, Mathematical Methods in the Applied Sciences, (2023), 1-25.
- [3] J Wu, Theory and applications of partial functional differential equations. Springer Verlag, Berlin, (1996).
- [4] E Zerrik, A Akoubi, A Ait Aadi, On the feedback stabilization of distributed bilinear systems with time delay. IFAC-PapersOnLine, 55(12) (2022), 729-734.

21 Temporal Evolution of Tumor Growth: A Mathematical Modeling Approach-Simulation and identification of parameters

Hamza AGUEDJIG^{1,*}, Sidi Mohammed DOUIRI¹, Imadd EL HARAKI², Mohammed EL HAMMANI¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences, Mohammed V University in Rabat, Rabat, Morocco.

² Rabat superior national school of mines, Department of Industrial Engineering, Rabat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: S. Author hamza.aguedjig@um5r.ac.ma

Abstract

In this study, we present a mathematical model of tumor growth in the case of liver metastases of gastrointestinal stromal tumors (GIST) using ordinary differential equations (ODEs). The model takes into account the impact of cytotoxic treatment and is a coupled ODE system. The first part of the study involves numerical simulation of the model through classical methods, while the second part focuses on optimizing the model parameters through the method of least squares based on clinical data to increase accuracy and align with scan results. Finally, the study explores the emergence of treatment resistance and the timing of when a tumor begins to resist treatment.

Keywords: Numerical method, Modeling, GIST, Tumor Growth, OED, Least square method, Emetgence

- T. Colin, T. Michel, and C. Poignard. *Mathematical study and asymptotic analysis of a model for tumour drug resistance.*, Research Report 8784, Inria Bordeaux SudOuest, October 2015.
- [2] Perrine Berment. *Modélisation de la réponse au traitement en oncologie. Exemples en radiothérapie et en thérapies ciblées.* PhD thesis, Universite de Bordeaux, 2016.
- [3] Attila Denes and Gergely Rost, *Global Analysis of a Cancer Model with Drug Resistance Due to Microvesicle Transfer*, Springer 2020
- [4] G. Lefebvre, F. Cornelis, P. Cumsille, T. Colin, C. Poignard, and O. Saut Spatial modelling of tumour drug resistance: the case of GIST liver metastases, Mathematical Medicine and Biology, Mathematical Medicine and Biology, (2016).
- [5] D. Ambrosi and L. Preziosi. *On the closure of mass balance models for tumor growth,* Mathematical Models and Methods in Applied Sciences, 12 (2002), pp. 737–754.

22 Square root problem and Subnormal Aluthge transforms

Hamza El Azhar¹, Abdelouahab Hanine², Kaissar Idrissi² and El Hassan Zerouali²

¹Department of Mathematics, Faculty of sciences, Chouaib Doukkali university, El Jadida, Morocco.

²Center of mathematical research of Rabat, P.O. box 1014, Department of

Mathematics, Faculty of sciences, Mohammed V university in Rabat, Rabat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Hamza El Azhar el-azhar.h@ucd.ac.ma

Abstract

For a non negative measure μ with p atoms, we study the relation between the Square Root Problem of μ and the problem of subnormality of \tilde{W}_{μ} the Aluthge transform of the associated unilateral weighted shift.

We use an approach based on uniquely represented elements in the support of $\mu * \mu$. We first show that if \tilde{W}_{μ} is subnormal, then $2p - 1 \leq card(supp(\mu * \mu)) \leq [\frac{(p-1)^2+6}{2}]$. We rewrite several results known for finitely atomic measure having at most five atoms and give a complete solution for measures six atoms.

Keywords: Finitely atomic measures, support of multiplicative convolution, subnormal Aluthge transform of weighted shifts, the Square Root Problem for measure.

- [1] R. Curto, J. Kim and J. Yoon, The Aluthge transform of unilateral weighted shifts and the Square Root Problem for finitely atomic measures, Math. Nachr. 292 (2019), 2352–2368.
- [2] El Azhar, H., Hanine, A., Idrissi, K. et al. Square root problem and subnormal Aluthge transforms. Ann. Funct. Anal. 14(1) (2023), 8.

23 Commutative Sub-algebras in Four-Dimensional Absolute Valued Algebras

Abdelhadi Moutassim

CRMEF Casablanca-Settat, Annexe Provinciale Settat, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: A. Moutassim, moutassim-1972@hotmail.fr*

Abstract

The aim of this talk is to construct, by algebraic methods, some new class of fourdimensional absolute valued algebras having two different commutative sub-algebras of dimension two [2], [7] and [5]. These new algebras contain a nonzero omnipresent idempotent. Furthermore, we classify all four-dimensional absolute valued algebras containing a nonzero idempotent commuting with all idempotents [3], [1] and [4], in this classification, we conclude such an algebra contains at least two different commutative sub-algebras of dimension two. Note that there exists a four dimensional absolute valued algebra containing no sub-algebra of dimension two [6], which means that, the problem of classifying all four-dimensional absolute valued algebras seems still to be open.

Keywords: Absolute valued algebra, division algebra, commutative algebra, omnipresent idempotent.

- [1] J.A. Cuenca, Third-power associative absolute valued algebras with a nonzero idempotent commuting with all idempotents. Publ. Mat. 58, 469-484 (2014)
- [2] M. L. El-Mallah, On finite dimensional absolute valued algebras satisfying (x, x, x) = 0, Arch Math. 49 (1987), 16-22.
- [3] EL-Mallah, Absolute valued algebras containing a central idempotent. J. Algebra. 128 (1990), 180-187. 108
- [4] A. Moutassimn and M. Benslimane, Four dimensional absolute valued algebras containing a nonzero central idempotent or with left unit. int. J. Algebra, Vol 10, (2016), no.11, 513-524.
- [5] A. Moutassim and M. Benslimane, Generalization of the Hopf commutative theorem Communication in Algebra, Vol. 45, (2017), No. 2, 883-888
- [6] M.I. Ramrez, On four-dimensional absolute valued algebras. Proceedings of the International Conference on Jordan Structures (Malaga, 1997), univ. Malaga, 1999, pp. 169-173.
- [7] A. Rodriguez, Absolute valued algebras of degree two. In Nonassociative Algebra and its applications (Ed. S. Gonzalez), Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht-Boston-London (1994), 350-356.

24 On four-dimensional absolute valued algebras with left omnipresent unit

Aziz Es.Sadiq^{1*}, Mohamed Louzari¹, Abdelhadi Moutassim²

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² CRMEF Casablanca-Settat, Annexe Provinciale Settat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. Es.Sadiq, azizes.sadiq20@gmail.com

Abstract

A classification of all four-dimensional absolute valued algebras with left omnipresent unit is given [1] and [2]. We construct, by algebraic methods all four-dimensional absolute valued algebras with left omnipresent unit. These new algebras contain at least one sub-algebra of dimension two [4], note that there exists a four-dimensional absolute valued algebra with left unit containing no sub-algebra of dimension two [3].

Keywords: Absolute valued algebra, Division algebra, left unit, omnipresent idempotent.

- [1] J.A. Cuenca, On one-sided division infinite dimensional normed real algebras, Publ. Mat. 36 (1992) 485-488.
- [2] M. Benslimane and A. Moutassim, Some New Class of Absolute Valued Algebras with Left Unit, Advances in Applied Cliford Algebras, 21 (2011), 31-40.
- [3] M.I. Ramirez, On four-dimensional absolute valued algebras. Proceedings of the International Conference on Jordan Structures (Malaga, 1997), univ. Malaga, 1999, pp. 169-173.
- [4] A. Rodriguez, Absolute valued algebras of degree two. In Nonassociative Algebra and its applications (Ed. S. Gonzalez), Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht-Boston-London (1994), 350-356.

25 A Common fixed point results for multi-valued mappings in Hausdorff modular fuzzy *b*-metric spaces

Noreddine Makran^{1,*}

¹ Department of Mathematical Sciences, Mohammed Premier University, Oujda, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: makran.noreddine@ump.ac.ma

Abstract

The modular fuzzy *b*-metric space is defined in this study, and we are interested in proving a general common fixed point theorem for a pair univalued mappings in modular fuzzy *b*-metric spaces. The findings in this work generalize the findings in [1] and produce additional specific findings that are supported by examples. An application to prove the existence of an integral equation's solution is shown to demonstrate the importance of our result.

Keywords: Fuzyy metric space, modular *b*-metric space, modular fuzzy *b*-metric space, t-norm, fixed point.

- [1] H. Kerim, W. Shatanawi, A. Tallafha and A. M. Shatnawi *Fixed point theorems on modular fuzzy metric spaces*, U.P.B. Sci. Bull., Series A, Vol. 84, Iss. 1, 2022
- [2] N. Makran, A. El Haddouchi, B. Marzouki, A common fixed point of multi-valued maps in b-Metric space. U.P.B. Sci. Bull., Series A, Vol. 82, Iss. 1, 2020 ISSN 1223-7027
- [3] N. Makran, A. El Haddouchi, B. Marzouki, *A generalized common fixed points for multivalued mappings in Gb-metric spaces with an Application*. U.P.B. Sci. Bull., Series A, Vol. 83, Iss. 1, 2021.

26 A novel quantum information based computational approximate solution of the Schrödinger partial differential equation

Imane EL HADOUTI^{1,*} and Mohamed ADDAM¹

¹ MAO, LSA, ENSAH, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, BP 03, 32003 Ajdir, Al Hoceima, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: imane.elhadouti@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this work, we solve the Schrödinger partial differential equation

$$i\hbar\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial t}(t,X) + \frac{\hbar^2}{2m}\Delta\phi(t,X) - V_0(X)\phi(t,X) - V_1 *_t \phi(t,X) = f(t,X)$$

for all $(t, X) \in [0, +\infty[\times\Omega, \text{with the initial conditions } \phi(0, X) = \phi_0(X)$ and the following boundary conditions

$$\phi(t,\xi) + \frac{\hbar^2}{2m} \frac{\partial \phi}{\partial \overrightarrow{n_{\xi}}}(t,\xi) = g(t,\xi), \qquad (t,\xi) \in [0,+\infty[\times \partial \Omega])$$

We use the frequency-domain method to solve the considered problem, as a partial differential equation with non-homogeneous boundary conditions. The method employs the Fourier transform Discrestiza-tion (FTD) and consists of two stages. In the first stage the equations are transformed into an equivalent problem for the frequency variables. The numerical solutions of this problem are approximated using a Galerkin projection based on the higher-order Spline finite element method. In the second stage a several quadrature procedure are used for the calculation of the solution of the inverse Fourier transform, and then we gives a comparison report between the various numerical computations of this integral. The fre-quency domain method avoids the discretization of the time variable in the considered problem. Finally, several test examples are presented to verify high accuracy, effectiveness, good resolution properties for smooth and discontinuous solutions and plots of field of displacements of the waves.

Keywords: Quantum information, Schrödinger PDE, frequency-domain approach, Spline finite element analysis.

- [1] Maheshwar Pathaka, Pratibha Joshia, Kottakkaran Sooppy Nisar, Numerical study of generalized 2-D nonlinear Schrödinger equation using Kansa method, Mathematics and Computers in Simulation, 200(2022), 186-198.
- [2] Ulrich Mohrhof, THE WORLD ACCORDING TO QUANTUM MECHANICS: Why the Laws of Physics Make Perfect Sense After All, World Scientific Publishing Co. Pte. Ltd., Singapore, 2011.

27 Investigation of Ant Colony with Levy Flight Techniques for Stochastic Combinatorial Optimization Problems

Fadoua El Asri^{1,*}, Chakir Tajani¹, Hanane Fakhouri¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Polydisciplinary Faculty of Larache, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: E. fadoua elasri.fadoua@etu.uae.ac.ma*

Abstract

The demand for efficient solutions to optimization problems with uncertain and stochastic data is increasing. Stochastic Combinatorial Optimization Problems (SCOPs) involve partially unknown information about problem data with a known probability distribution [1]. Although classical methods based on mathematical and dynamic programming can provide optimal solutions, they may not be feasible for large problem instances due to their computational complexity. To address this issue, the Levy flight method is often used to balance the search space and speed for global optimization. In this study, we propose an enhanced ant colony algorithm that utilizes the Levy flight mechanism to solve SCOPs, specifically the probabilistic traveling salesman problem (PTSP) where the presence of customers is modeled stochastically [2]. This approach enables some ants to take long jumps using the Levy distribution to avoid local optima situations [3]. Simulation results demonstrate that the proposed algorithm with Levy flight outperforms the conventional ant colony algorithm in solving the probabilistic traveling salesman problem. Overall, this study provides a promising approach to enhancing the performance of ant colony algorithm in solving stochastic combinatorial optimization problems.

Keywords: Combinatorial optimization, Stochastic, Levy Flight, Ant Colony, Probabilistic traveling salesman problem.

- [1] B. Sandhya, R. Goel, and R. Maini, An improved ant colony algorithm based on levy flight distribution, Adv. Math. Sci. J., 9(6) (2020), 3907-3916.
- [2] B. Leonora, M. Dorigo, L. M. Gambardella, and W. J. Gutjahr; A survey on metaheuristics for stochastic combinatorial optimization, Natural Computing 8 (2009), 239-287.
- [3] A. Henchiri, M. Bellalouna and W. Khaznaji, A probabilistic traveling salesman problem: a survey, In FedCSIS (Position Papers), (2014) 55-60.

28 On rings with Property (*a.c.*) and their extensions

Latifa Malki 1* and Mohamed Louzari 2

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Latifa Malki latifa.malki@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

Let *R* be an associative unital ring and let σ be an endomorphism of *R*. *R* is said to have the Property (*a.c.*) if for each finitely generated ideal *I* of *R*, there exists an element $c \in R$ such that $r_R(I) = r_R(RcR)$ [4]. The aim of this communication is to present some rings having the Property (*a.c.*), as well as investigating this property over σ -skew quasi-Armendariz rings.

Keywords: Annihilator condition, p.q.-Baer rings, *σ*-skew quasi-Armendariz rings.

- [1] M. Henriksen, M. Jerison, The space of minimal prime ideals of a commutative ring, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc., 115 (1965), 110-130.
- [2] G. F. Birkenmeier, J. K. Park, J. Y. Kim, Principally quasi-Baer rings, Comm. Algebra, 29(2) (2001), 639-660.
- [3] L. Ben Yakoub, M. Louzari, Ore extensions of principally quasi-Baer rings, JP Journal of Algebra, Number Theory and Appl., 13(2) (2009), 137-151.
- [4] C. Y. Hong, N. K. Kim, P. P. Nielsen, Y. Lee, The minimal prime spectrum of rings with annihilator conditions, J. Pure Appl. Algebra, 213(7) (2009), 1478-1488.
- [5] G. Bajor, M. Ziembowski, Annihilator condition does not pass to polynomials and power series, J. Pure Appl. Algebra, 223(9) (2019), 3869-3878.
- [6] T. G. Lucas, Two annihilator conditions: Property (A) and (*a.c.*), Comm. Algebra, 14(3) (1986), 557-580.
- [7] M. Baser, T. K. Kwak, Quasi-Armendariz property for skew polynomial rings, Comm. Korean Math. Soc., 26(4) (2011), 557-573.
- [8] G. Törner, R. Mazurek, Comparizer ideals of rings, Comm. Algebra, 32(12) (2004), 4653-4665.
- [9] C. R. Yohe, On rings in which every ideal is the annihilator of an element, Proc. Amer. Math. Soc., 19(6) (1968), 1346-1348.
- [10] C. Y. Hong, N. K. Kim, Y. Lee, Skew polynomial rings over semiprime rings, J. Korean Math. Soc., 47(5) (2010), 879-897.

29 Entropy solutions for some nonlinear and noncoercive parabolic problems in the anisotropic Sobolev spaces

Youssef HAJJI^{1,*}, Hassane HJIAJ²

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: H. Youssef youssef.hajji@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we investigate the existence of an entropy solution for the following nonlinear and non-coercive parabolic problem

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + Au + \nu |u|^{s-1}u = \sum_{i=1}^{N} F_i(x, t, u) \quad \text{in } Q_T,$$

where *A* is a non-coercive operator of Leray-Lions type acted from the anisotropic parabolic space $L^{\vec{p}}(0,T;W_0^{1,\vec{p}}(\Omega))$ into its dual, with $F_i(x,t,\cdot)$ is a nonlinear term having a singularity term on *x*.

Keywords: Quasilinear parabolic equations, Hardy potential, non-coercive problems, entropy solutions.

- [1] B. Abdellaoui, A. Attar and S. E. Miri, Nonlinear singular elliptic problem with gradient term and general datum, J. Math. Anal. Appl, 409 (2014), no. 1, 362-377.
- [2] J. P. G. Azorero and I. P. Alonso, Hardy inequalities and some critical elliptic and parabolic problems, J. Differential Equations, 144 (1998), no. 2, 441-476.
- [3] P. Baras and J. A. Goldstein, The heat equation with a singular potential, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 284 (1984), no. 1, 121-139.
- [4] L. Boccardo, T. Galloüet and J. L. Vàzquez, Some regularity results for some nonlinear parabolic equations in L1, Rend. Sem. Mat. Univ. Politec. Torino 1989, (1991), 69-74.
- [5] M. Chrif, S. El Manouni, and H. Hjiaj, On the study of strongly parabolic problems involving anisotropic operators in L¹, Monatshefte für Mathematik, (2021), 611-647.

30 Renormalized periodic solutions for a nonlinear parabolic equation involving p(x)-growth conditions with irregular data

Abderrahim Charkaoui^{1,*}, Nour Eddine Alaa²

¹ Higher School of Education and Training of Berrechid (ESEFB), Hassan First University, Berrechid, Morocco

² Laboratory LAMAI, Faculty of Science and Technology, University Cadi Ayyad, Marrakesh, Morocco

* Correspondig author: A. Charkaoui, abderrahim.charkaoui@uhp.ac.ma

Abstract

This work aims to examine the existence of periodic solutions to a nonlinear parabolic equation driven by p(x)-Laplacian operator with irregular data. By assuming that the data belongs in the Lebesgue space L^1 , we establish the existence of a renormalized periodic solution to the studied model. The functional framework involves generalized Lebesgue and Sobolev spaces with variable exponents.

Keywords: L^1 data, nonlinear parabolic equation, p(x)-Laplacian operator, variable exponents, Renormalized periodic solution.

- M. Bendahmane, P. Wittbold and A. Zimmermann, *Renormalized solutions for a nonlinear parabolic equation with variable exponents and* L¹-*data*, J. Differential Equations, (2010), 1483–1515.
- [2] P. Bénilan, L. Boccardo, T. Gallouët, R. Gariepy, M. Pierre and J. L. Vazquez; An L¹ theory of existence and uniqueness of solutions of nonlinear elliptic equations, Ann. Sc. Norm. Super. Pisa Cl. Sci, (1995), 241–273.
- [3] A. Charkaoui, N. E. Alaa, Existence and uniqueness of renormalized periodic solution to a nonlinear parabolic problem with variable exponent and L¹ data. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 506(2), (2022), 125674.
- [4] A. Charkaoui, H. Fahim, N. E. Alaa, Nonlinear parabolic equation having nonstandard growth condition with respect to the gradient and variable exponent, Opuscula Math. 41, no 1, (2021), 25–53.
- [5] A. Charkaoui, L. Taourirte, N. E. Alaa, Periodic parabolic equation involving singular nonlinearity with variable exponent. Ricerche mat (2021). https://doi.org/10.1007/s11587-021-00609-w.
- [6] P. Hess, *Periodic-Parabolic Boundary Value Problem and Positivity*, Pitman Res. Notes Math Ser. **247**. New York: Longman Scientifc and Technical, 1991.
- [7] V.V. Zhikov, On some variational problems, Russ. J. Math. Phys. 5 (1997) 105–116.

31 Notes on complex symmetric Toeplitz operators on Hardy space and truncated Toeplitz operators

Adel Babbah¹ and Mohamed Zohry²

¹ Polydisciplinary Faculty, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Larache, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

Abstract

In this paper, we characterize the complex symmetric Toeplitz operator on the Hardy space via a kind of canonical conjugation on H 2 introduced by M.S. Ferreira in [1]. In model space equipped with a conjugation, we prove some results for truncated toeplitz operators in relationship with complex symmetry according to [3].

- [1] M.S. Ferreira , On The Spectrum of complex symmetric Toeplitz operators Mathematics subject classification , 2022
- [2] M.S. Ferreira , Some notes on complex symmetric operators , e-Journal of Analysis and Applied Mathematics, 2021
- [3] P. Aiena ,S. Trolio Some remarks on the spectral properties OF Toepltiz Operators. Mediterranean Journal of Mathematics, 2019

32 An efficient algorithm based on particle swarm optimization for solving the Cauchy problem for Helmholtz equation

Jamal Daoudi^{1,*}, Chakir Tajani¹

¹ Faculty Polydisciplinary Larache (FPL), University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: J. Daoudi jamaldaouid5@gmail.com

Abstract

In this work, we consider a Cauchy problem associated with the Helmholtz equation. This problem consists in recovering the missing conditions on the inaccessible part of the boundary from over-specified measurements available on the accessible one. To solve this ill-posed problem, we use an optimization approach based on particle swarm optimization (PSO) in combination with the finite element method (FEM). Numerical simulations for an irregular domain show the feasibility and effectiveness of this algorithm and demonstrate that our approach can recover a close estimate of the unknown Cauchy data.

Keywords: Inverse Problem, Particle Swarm Optimization, Data completion problem, Helmholtz equation.

- [1] J Kennedy and R Eberhart, Particle swarm optimization. In Proceedings of ICNN'95-international conference on neural networks, Vol. 4 (1995)1942-1948.
- [2] A Habbal and M Kallel, Data completion problems solved as nash games, Journal of Physics: Conference Series, Vol. 386 (2012), 012004.
- [3] C Tajani, H Kajtih and A Daanoun, Iterative method to solve a data completion problem for biharmonic equation for rectangular domain, Annals of West University of Timisoara-Mathematics and Computer Science, 55 (1) (2017), 129-147.
- [4] J Hadamard, 1923 lectures on cauchy's problem in linear partial differential equations, (1953).
- [5] B Jin and L Marin, The plane wave method for inverse problems associated with Helmholtz-type equations, Engineering Analysis with Boundary Elements, (2008), 223-240.

33 Simple and fast convergent procedure to estimate recursive path analysis model

Sahli Abderrahim^{1,*}, El hadri Zouhair², Hanafi Mohamed³

¹ Faculty of Sciences, Mohammed V University in Rabat, Rabat, Morocco,

² Faculty of Sciences, Mohammed V University in Rabat, Rabat, Morocco,

³ Oniris, Research Unit in Statistics, Sensometrics and Chemometrics, Nantes, France.

* Correspondig author: S. Abderrahim : abderrahim.sahli@um5r.ac.ma

Abstract

The purpose of statistics is to describe the phenomena studied and to give forecasts, and make decisions. To describe the phenomena studied using methods and techniques such as linear regression, principal component analysis (PCA), canonical analysis,....

In this paper we will focus on the method called Path analysis (PA), PA discovered by Wright (1921, 1923, 1934) is a statistical technique used to examine cause-and-effect relations between a set of observed variables. On the one hand, PA can be seen as a straightforward extension of multiple regression. On the other hand, it is the starting point of structural equation modelling (SEM). PA is performed upon five steps: specification, identification, estimation, testing, and modification (Schumacker and Lomax 2004). The estimation step appears as the core of the modelling process. It consists on finding values for the unknown parameters by minimizing a given criterion. BFGS procedure is classically used for the estimation of the parameters of a recursive Path Analysis model. In practice, BFGS does not present any problem of convergence. However, to date, no proof of its convergence is available. The present paper introduces an alternative procedure and establishes its convergence properties.

Keywords: Path analysis, Correlation matrix, Finite iterative method, Unweighted least squares, Generalized least squares.

- El Hadri Z, Hanafi M, The finite iterative method for calculating the correlation matrix implied by a recursive path model. Electron J Appl Stat Anal 08(01) (2015) 84-99
- [2] El Hadri Z, Iaousse M, Hanafi M, Dolce P, El Kettani Y. Properties of the correlation matrix implied by a recursive path model obtained using the finite iterative method. Electron J Appl Stat Anal 13(02) (2020) :413-435.
- [3] Iaousse M, Hmimou A, El Hadri Z, El Kettani Y (2020) On the computation of the correlation matrix implied by a recursive path model. In the 6th edition of the international conference on optimization and applications (ICOA 2020)

34 Exponential and weak stabilization of distributed perturbed semilinear systems

Abdelkader Daoui, Yassine Benslimane, Abdelbaki Attioui

Laboratory of Mathematics and Applications, ENS, Hassan II University, Casablanca.

daouiaabdelkader@hotmail.fr

Abstract

This paper deals with the problem of feedback stabilisation for a class of distributed semilinear systems evolving on a real Hilbert state space, under external perturbation given by nonlinear operator. Firstly, we discuss the existence and uniqueness of the global mild solution of the considered systems. Moreover, we give sufficient conditions to guarantee exponential, strong and weak stabilizations of such systems. Then, we characterize controls, that stabilizes the state, and minimizes a given performance cost. Finally, the obtained results are illustrated by examples and numerical simulations.

Keywords: Semilinear systems, Optimal feedback control, Exponential stabilization.

- [1] J. Ball and M. Selmrod. Feedback stabilization of distributed semilinear control systems.J Appl Math Opt 5 (1979) 169–179.
- [2] M. Ouzahra. Exponential stabilization of constrained semilinear systems by optimal control. Journal of mathematical Analysis and applications, 380 (2011), 117– 123.
- [3] A. Tsouli and Y. Benslimane. Stabilization for distributed semilinear systems governed by optimal feedback control. International Journal of Dynamics and Control , June 2019

35 SEMI- COMPACTNESS OF NULL ALMOST L-WEAKLY COMPACT OPERATORS ON BANACH LATTICES

Safae. EL FILALI^{1,*}, Khalid BOURAS¹

¹ Faculty Polydisciplianry of Larache, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: safae.elfilali@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

The subject of this work is mainly concerned with the functional analysis, more precisely, in the field of the theory of positive operators on Banach lattices. And the aim is to study the relation between the class of semi-compact and the class of Null almost Lweakly compact operators and we give some interesting consequences. We investigate conditions on a pair of Banach lattices E and F that tells us when positive semi-compact operator is Null almost L-weakly compact and conversely.

Keywords: Semi-compact, Null almost L-weakly compact, order continuous, Banach lattice.

- [1] C. D. Aliprantis and O. Burkinshaw. *Positive operators*. Springer, Berlin (2006)
- [2] B. Aqzzouz , A. Elbour. Some characterizations of almost Dunford–Pettis operators and applications. Positivity 15(3), 369–380 (2011)
- [3] B. Aqzzouz, A. Elbour, J. Hmichane, The duality problem for the class of b-weakly compact operators, Positivity, in press.
- [4] K. Bouras, A. El aloui. On the class of Null almost L-weakly and Null almost Mweakly compact operators and their compactness. Asia Pac. J. Math. 2022
- [5] K. Bouras, D. Lhaimer, and M. Moussa. On the class of almost L-weakly and almost M-weakly compact operators. Positivity, 22, 1433–1443 (2018)
- [6] A. Elbour, F. Afkir, and M. Sabiri. Some properties of almost L-weakly and almost M-weakly compact operators. *Positivity* (2019)
- [7] H. Li, Z. Chen. Some results on almost L-weakly compact and almost M-weakly compact. arXiv:1904.08116v4 [math.FA] 23 Apr 2019.
- [8] P. Meyer-Nieberg. *Banach lattices*. Springer, Berlin (1991)
- [9] A. W. Wickstead, Converses for the Dodds-Fremlin and Kalton-Saab theorems, Math. Proc. Camb. Phil. Soc
- [10] Zaanen, A.C.: Riesz Spaces II. North Holland Publishing Company, Amsterdam (1983)

36 Unilateral problem associated to some noncoercive elliptic equation in anisotropic Sobolev spaces

BOUCHAIB FERRAHI¹, HASSANE HJIAJ², RAJAE ZEROUALI^{3,*}

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Rajae ZEROUALI rajae.zerouali@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

This paper is devoted to study existence of unilateral problem associated to the degenerated elliptic equation, whose prototype is given by

$$\left\{ \begin{array}{ll} Au+g(x,u)=f(x)-\operatorname{div}\,F(x,u) & \quad \text{in }\Omega,\\ u=0 & \quad \text{on }\partial\Omega, \end{array} \right.$$

in the anisotropic Sobolev space, where Ω is a bounded open subset set of \mathbb{R}^N ($N \ge 2$), where $f \in L^1(\Omega)$ and F(x, u) satisfying only some growth condition. We show the existence of entropy solutions and we will conclude some regularity results.

Keywords: Anisotropic Sobolev spaces, non-coercive quasilinear elliptic equation, unilateral problems, entropy solutions.

- [1] L. Aharouch and Y. Akdim, *Strongly Nonlinear Elliptic Unilateral Problems without Sign Condition and L1 Data*, Journal of Convex Analysis Volume 13 (2006), No. 1, 135-149.
- [2] L. Aharouch and J. Bennouna, *Existence and uniqueness of solutions of unilateral problems in Orlicz spaces*. Nonlinear Anal. 72 (2010), no. 9-10, 3553-3565.
- [3] Y. Akdim, C. Allalou and A. Salmani, *Existence of Solutions for Some Nonlinear Elliptic Anisotropic Unilateral Problems with Lower Order Terms*, Moroccan J. of Pure and Appl. Anal Volume 4(2), 2018, Pages 171-188.
- [4] A. Benkirane, M. El.Moumni and A. Youssfi, *Existence result for strongly nonlinear elliptic unilateral problems with* L¹ *data*, Complex Variables and Elliptic Equations, 2014, 59(4), pp. 447-461

37 On multivalued probabilistic ψ -contractions involving orbits in b-Menger spaces

Youssef Achtoun^{1,*}, Ismail Tahiri^{1,*}, Mohammed Lamarti Sefian¹

³ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Y. Achtoun : achtoun44@outlook.fr

Abstract

In this paper, we give a new approach of some well-known fixed point theorems for multivalued probabilistic ψ -contraction in b-Menger space by using the boundedness of the orbits. As an application of these results, we also obtain the corresponding fixed point theorem in metric spaces. Our results improve and generalize the results given by Hadžić [6] and Fang [4].

Keywords: Fixed points, b-Menger spaces, multivalued ψ -contraction.

- [1] I. A. Bakhtin, The contraction mapping principle in almost metric spaces. Funct. Anal., 30 (1989), 26-37.
- [2] S. Banach, Sur les opérations dans les ensembles abstraits et leur applications aux équations intégrales. Fundam. Maths. 3, 133-181 (1922).
- [3] S. Czerwik, Nonlinear set-valued contraction mappings in b-metric spaces. Atti Semin. Mat. Fis. Univ. Modena 46(2), 263-276 (1998).
- [4] J. X. Fang. A note on fixed point theorems of Hadzic, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 48 (1992), 391-395.
- [5] O. Hadžić, E. Pap, Fixed Point Theory in Probabilistic Metric Spaces, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, 2001.
- [6] O. Hadžić, Fixed point theorems for multi-valued mappings in some classes of fuzzy metric spaces, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 29 (1989) 115-125.
- [7] A. Mbarki, R. Oubrahim, Probabilistic b-metric spaces and nonlinear contractions, Fixed Point Theory Appl. Fixed Point Theory Appl. 2017, Paper No. 29, 15 p. (2017).
- [8] S.B. Nadler Jr., Multivalued contraction mappings, Pacific J. Math. 30 (1969) 475–488.
- [9] B. Schweizer and A. Sklar, Probabilistic Metric Spaces North-Holland, New York. (1983).
- [10] H. Sherwood, Complete probabilistic metric spaces, Z. Wahrscheinlichkeitstheorie und Verw. Gebiete. 20 (1971/72), 117-128.

38 A critical Steklov-type problem driven by a p(x)-Laplace operator

Mostafa Allaoui^{1,*}, Omar Darhouche¹

¹ FSTH, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: M. Allaoui m.allaoui@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this work, we consider some class of Steklov-type problems involving the p(x)-Laplace operator with variable exponents. Using variational methods combined with the Mountain pass lemma, we prove some existence and multiplicity results for the given problem in an appropriate functions spaces. The main results of this paper improve and generalize the previous ones introduced in the literature.

Keywords: PDE, p(x)-Laplace operator, Steklov problem, variational methods.

- G.A. Afrouzi, S. Heidarkhani, S. Shokooh; *Infinitely many solutions for Steklov problems associated to non-homogeneous differential operators through Orlicz-Sobolev spaces*, Complex Variables and Elliptic Equations. 60 (2015) 1505-1521.
- [2] B. Ali, A. Ghanmi, K. Kefi; *On the steklov problem involving the p* (*x*)*-laplacian with indefinite weight*, Opuscula Mathematica 37 (2017).
- [3] M Allaoui, AR El Amrouss, A Ourraoui; Existence and multiplicity of solutions for a Steklov problem involving the p (x)-Laplace operator Electron, J. Diff. Equ, 132 (2012) 1–12.
- [4] M. Allaoui; *Continuous spectrum of Steklov nonhomogeneous elliptic problem*, Opuscula Math. 35 (2015) 853–866.

39 Unilateral problems having two lower order terms and measure data in Musielak-Orlicz spaces

Nourdine EL AMARTY^{1,*}, Badr EL HAJI², Mostafa EL MOUMNI¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences El Jadida, University Chouaib Doukkali, El Jadida, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: elamartynourdine@gmail.com

Abstract

This paper is concerned with the existence results for nonlinear unilateral elliptic problems having two lower order terms and measure data in Musielak-Orlicz spaces, where the Musielak function verify the log-Hölder continuity condition.

Keywords: Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, elliptic problem, renormalized solutions, truncations.

- [1] A. Benkirane, A. Elmahi, Strongly nonlinear elliptic unilateral problems having natural growth terms and L^1 data, Rend. Mat. 18 (1998) 289-303.
- [2] Benilan, P., Boccardo, L., Gallouet, T., Gariepy, R., Pierre, M., Vazquez, J.: An L¹-theory of existence and uniqueness of solutions of nonlinear elliptic equations Ann. ScuolaNorm. Super. Pisa 22, 241–273 (1995)
- [3] Diperna, R.J., Lions, P.L.: On the Cauchy problem for the Boltzmann equations, global existence and weak stability. Ann. Math. 130, 321–366 (1989)
- [4] Elmahi, A and Meskine, D., Elliptic inequalities with lower order terms and L1 data in Orlicz spaces, Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 328(2), 1417 1434(2007).
- [5] M. El Moumni; Nonlinear elliptic equations without sign condition and L¹-data in Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Acta. Appl. Math. 159:95–117 (2019).
- [6] M. El Moumni; Renormalized solutions for strongly nonlinear elliptic problems with lower order terms and measure data in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Iran. J. Math. Sci. Inform. Vol 14, No 1, pp 95–119 (2019).
- [7] J. P. Gossez; Nonlinear elliptic boundary value problems for equations with rapidly (or slowly) increasing coeficients, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 190 (1974) 163-205.
- [8] J. P. Gossez; *A strongly non-linear elliptic problem in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces*, Proc. Am. Math. Soc. Symp. Pure Math. 45, 455-462(1986).
- [9] Gossez, J.P., Mustonen, V.; *Variationnal inequalities in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces*. Nonlinear Anal. 11, 317-492 (1987)
- [10] Hewitt, E., Stromberg, K.; Real and Abstract Analysis. Springer, Berlin (1965)

40 Strongly nonlinear elliptic problem with -data in the setting of Musielak-spaces

Rachid BOUZYANI^{1,*}, Badr EL HAJI², Mostafa EL MOUMNI¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences El Jadida, University Chouaib Doukkali, El Jadida, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: rachid.maths2013@gmail.com

Abstract

The aim of this paper is to investigate an existence of renormalized solutions for some boundary value elliptic problem of the form $-\operatorname{div}(a(x, u, \nabla u) + \Phi(x, u)) + g(x, u, \nabla u) = f$ in Ω , in the framework of Musielak-Orlicz spaces, where the term Φ satisfies the natural growth condition, the function g has a natural growth with respect to its third argument and without sign condition, no Δ_2 -condition is assumed on the Musielak function, and $f \in L^1(\Omega)$.

Keywords: Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, elliptic problem, renormalized solutions, truncations.

- [1] Y. Ahmida, A.Youssfi; Poincaré-type inequalities in Musielak spaces. Ann. Acad. Sci. Fenn. Math. 44 (2019), no. 2, 1041-1054.
- [2] Y. Akdim, A. Benkirane, M. El Moumni and H. Redwane; Existence of renormalized solutions for nonlinear parabolic equations, Journal of Partial Differential Equations, Volume 27, Number 1, (2014), 28-49.
- [3] Diperna, R.J., Lions, P.L.: *On the Cauchy problem for the Boltzmann equations, global existence and weak stability.* Ann. Math. 130, 321-366 (1989)
- [4] Elmahi, A and Meskine, D., Elliptic inequalities with lower order terms and L1 data in Orlicz spaces, Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 328(2), 1417 1434(2007).
- [5] M. El Moumni; Nonlinear elliptic equations without sign condition and L¹-data in Musielak-Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Acta. Appl. Math. 159:95–117 (2019).
- [6] M. El Moumni; Renormalized solutions for strongly nonlinear elliptic problems with lower order terms and measure data in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, Iran. J. Math. Sci. Inform. Vol 14, No 1, pp 95–119 (2019).
- [7] R. Elarabi, M. Rhoudaf, H. Sabiki; Entropy solution for a nonlinear elliptic problem with lower order term in Musielak-Orlicz spaces. Ric. Mat. (2017). https://doi.org/10.1007/s11587-017-0334-z
- [8] J. P. Gossez; Nonlinear elliptic boundary value problems for equations with rapidly (or slowly) increasing coeficients, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 190 (1974) 163-205.

41 Weak periodic solution for strongly nonlinear parabolic problems

Abdelghani AZ-EDINE^{1,*} and Mostafa EL MOUMNI¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University Chouaib Doukkali, El Jadida, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: azedin.ghani@gmail.com

Abstract

This work deals with an existence result of a weak periodic solutions for non-linear parabolic equations of the type

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + \Delta u + H(x, t, u, \nabla u) = f & \text{ in } Q = \Omega \times]0, T[, \\ u(x, 0) = u(x, T) & \text{ in } \Omega, \\ -\frac{\partial u}{\partial \nu} = \beta(x, t)u + h(x, t, u) & \text{ on } \Sigma = \partial \Omega \times]0, T[, \end{cases}$$

where $\Omega \subset \mathbb{R}^N (N \ge 2)$ bounded open domain with smooth boundary denoted by $\partial \Omega$. We assume that

- f is a periodic function such that $f \in L^2(Q)$.
- β is a periodic positive continuous and bounded function.
- $h : \Sigma \times \mathbb{R} \to \mathbb{R}$ is a Carathéodory function periodic in time, $s \to h(x, t, s)$ is nondecreasing for a.e $(x, t) \in \Sigma$, $h(x, t, s)s \ge 0$ and $|h(t, x, s)| \le \xi(x, t) + |s|$ where $\xi \in L^2(\Sigma)$.
- $H: Q \times \mathbb{R} \times \mathbb{R}^N \to \mathbb{R}$ is a Carathéodory function such that $H(x, t, s, \xi) \in L^1(Q)$ $\forall s \in \mathbb{R}, \forall \xi \in \mathbb{R}^N$ and a.e $(x, t) \in Q$.
- $|H(x,t,s,\xi)| \leq g(s)|\xi|^2$ a.e $(x,t) \in Q, \forall s \in \mathbb{R}, \forall \xi \in \mathbb{R}^N$, where $g : \mathbb{R} \to \mathbb{R}^+$ is a continuous function and $g \in L^1(\mathbb{R})$.

Keywords: Weak Periodic solution , parabolic equation , nonlinear boundary conditions.

- A. Elaassri, N. Alaa, A.Charkaoui, S. Mesbahi, L. Kaoutar. Existence of weak periodic solution for quasilinear parabolic problem with nonlinear boundary conditions. International Journal of Applied Mathematics and Computer Science. 46, 2019. 1-13.
- [2] M. Badii, Periodic solutions for a nonlinear parabolic equation with nonlinear boundary conditions, Rend. Sem. Mat. Univ. Pol. Torino, Vol. 67, 3 (2009), 341-349.

42 Multiplicity of solutions for a bi-nonlocal elliptic problem involving the p(x)-Laplacian

Omar Darhouche^{1,*}, Mostafa allaoui¹

¹ FSTH, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: O. Darhouche, o.darhouche@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this article, we deal with a class of p(x)-Kirchhoff equation where the non-linearity has non-standard growth and contains a bi-non-local term. Using variational methods, we prove the existence and multiplicity of solutions for the given problem under certain assumptions.

Keywords: p(x)-Laplacian operator, Variational methods, Kirchhoff problem, Bi-nonlocal term.

- [1] M. Allaoui and A. Ourraoui, *Existence results for a class of* p(x)-*Kirchhoff problem with a singular weight*, Mediterr. J. Math., **13**(2), (2016) 677-686.
- [2] C.J. Batkam, *An elliptic equation under the effect of two nonlocal terms*, Math. Methods Appl. Sci., **39**(6), (2016) 1535-1547.
- [3] J. Chabrowski, On bi-nonlocal problem for elliptic equations with Neumann boundary conditions, J. Anal. Math., **134**, (2018) 303-334.
- [4] F.J.S. Corrêa and A.C.D.R. Costa, A variational approach for a bi-nonlocal elliptic problem involving the p(x)-Laplacian and non-linearity with non-standard growth, Glasgow Math. J., 56(2), (2014) 317-333.

43 Using the Sherman-Morrison-Woodbury Inversion Formula to solve nearly penta-diagonal Toeplitz linear systems

Fouad Aoulad Omar¹, Chakir Tajani¹

¹ Polydisciplinary Faculty of Larache, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: F. Aoulad Omar f8aouladomar@gmail.com

Abstract

In this work, we are interested in solving nearly penta-diagonal Toeplitz linear systems Tx = b where T is a matrix of size $n \times n$ given by :

$$T = \begin{bmatrix} t_0 & t_{-1} & t_{-2} & 0 & \dots & 0 & t_{2-n} & t_{1-n} \\ t_1 & t_0 & t_{-1} & t_{-2} & \ddots & \ddots & 0 & t_{2-n} \\ t_2 & t_1 & t_0 & t_{-1} & t_{-2} & \ddots & \ddots & 0 \\ 0 & \ddots & \vdots \\ \vdots & \ddots & 0 \\ 0 & \ddots & \ddots & t_2 & t_1 & t_0 & t_{-1} & t_{-2} \\ t_{n-2} & 0 & \ddots & \ddots & t_2 & t_1 & t_0 & t_{-1} \\ t_{n-1} & t_{n-2} & 0 & \dots & 0 & t_2 & t_1 & t_0 \end{bmatrix}, x \text{ and } b \in \mathbb{R}^{n,1}$$

We propose a fast numerical algorithm based on the use of the Sherman–Morrison Woodbury inversion formula. By exploiting the special matrice structure of T, we propose a new decomposition form of the coefficient matrix. Then, the application of the well-known Sherman–Morrison–Woodbury inversion formula, we compute the inverse of the considered matrix which allow to solve the system. Numerical results for different standard instances are provided to illustrate the accuracy end the efficiency of the proposed algorithm.

Keywords: Nearly penta-diagonal Toeplitz matrix, linear system, Sherman–Morrison Woodbury formula.

- N Egidi and N Egidi, A Sherman–Morrison approach to the solution of linear systems, A Sherman–Morrison approach to the solution of linear systems, 189 (2006) 703–718.
- [2] A Chesnokov, M V Barel, A direct method to solve block banded block Toeplitz systems with non-banded Toeplitz blocks, Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, 234 (2010) 1485–1491.

44 On the study of some noncoercive elliptic equations in anisotropic weighted Sobolev spaces

ARIJ BOUZELMATE¹, HASSANE HJIAJ², INSSAF RAISS^{3,*}

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: I. RAISS inssaf.raiss@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this work, we consider some nonlinear and non-coercive elliptic Dirichlet problem

$$\begin{cases} Au + d(|u|) |\nabla u|^p \omega_0 = f(x, u) & \text{ in } \Omega, \\ u = 0 & \text{ on } \partial \Omega \end{cases}$$

in the anisotropic weighted Sobolev spaces. We study the existence and regularity of renormalized solutions for this elliptic equation. Also we will conclude some regularity results.

Keywords: Anisotropic Weighted Sobolev spaces, elliptic equation, renormalized solutions.

- [1] S. N. Kruzhkov and I. M. Kolodii, On the theory of embedding of anisotropic Sobolev spaces, Russian Math. Surveys 38 (1983), 188-189.
- [2] A. Kufner and B. Opic, How to define reasonably weighted Sobolev spaces, Commentationes Mathematicae Universitatis Carolinae., 25(3) (1984) 537-554.
- [3] B. Muckenhoupt, Weighted norm inequalities for the hardy maximal function, Trans. Am. Math. Soc., 165 (1972). 207-226.
- [4] S. M. Nikolskii, Imbedding theorems for functions with partial derivatives considered in various metrics, Izd. Akad. Nauk SSSR 22 (1958), 321-336.
- [5] M. Troisi, Teoremi di inclusione per spazi di Sobolev non isotropi, Ricerche Mat. 18 (1969), 3-24.

45 Management of Moroccan Fisheries with Variable Market Price

Ismail EL HAKKI^{1*}, Rachid MCHICH², Amal BERGAM¹, Najib CHAROUKI³

¹ Polydisciplinary Faculty, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Larache, Morocco.

² National School of Business and Management (ENCGT), Tangier, Morocco.

³ National Institute of Fisheries Research (INRH), Fisheries Department, Casablanca, Morocco

* Correspondig author: Ismail EL HAKKI Ismaillakki2@gmail.com

Abstract

We present a dynamical model of fishery describing the time evolution of the fish stock, the fishing effort with a variable price, and the market price is fixed by the gap between the supply and the demand. The three-dimensional model considers a nonlinear harvesting function. Assuming two-time scales, we use "aggregation of variables methods" in order to derive a reduced model governing fish density and fishing efforts at a slow time scale. This reduced model is analyzed and according to parameters values, three main cases can occur: the first one is locally asymptotically stable; the fish population becomes extinct, fishing efforts tend to a positive constant value and the price tends to infinity when approaching equilibrium, this case corresponds to overexploitation leading to fish extinction, the second case corresponds to stable fishery equilibrium, and the third case corresponds to the coexistence of two strictly positive equilibria, the first one is a saddle and the second is stable.

Keywords: Demand function, Stability, Variable price.

- Auger, P., Mchich, R., Raissi, N., Kooi B., 2010. Effects of market price on the dynamics of a spatial fishery model: Over-exploited fishery/traditional fishery. Ecological Complexity 7: 13/20.
- [2] Charouki N., Raissi N., Auger P.M., Mchich R., Atmani H., 2011. A management oriented competitive model with two time scales : The case of sardine fishery along the Atlantic coast between Cantin Cape and Blanc Cape. Ecol. Model. 222. 1253-1261.
- [3] Clark, C. W. Mathematical bioeconomics : the optimal management of renewable resources. Pure and Applied Mathematics. Wiley-Interscience, New York, 1976.
- [4] Mchich, R., Auger, P., Brochier, T. ,Brehmer, (2016). Interactions Between the Cross-Shore Structure of Small Pelagic Fish Population ,Offshore Industrial Fisheries and Near Shore Artisanal Fisheries : A Mathematical Approach

46 On a *p*-fractional Kirchhoff-type equation with critical exponent

Mohammed Massar^{1,*}, Abdelilah Azghay¹

¹FSTH, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: M. Massar massarmed@hotmail.com*

Abstract

This work deals with a *p*-fractional Kirchhoff type equation, for which the existence and nonexistence of solutions is proved by employing mountain pass theorem with Cerami condition and some technical lemmas, especially a variant of Lions lemma inspired by Ramos. More concretely, transforming the equation into an equivalent system, we show the existence of at least one solution or two solutions without the well-known Ambrosetti-Rabinowitz (AR) condition.

Keywords: Fractional p-Laplacian operator, Kirchhoff-type equation, Critical exponent.

- [1] V. Ambrosio and T. Isernia, On the multiplicity and concentration for *p*-fractional Schrödinger equations, Appl. Math. Lett., 95 (2019), 13–22.
- [2] H. Jin and W. Liu, Fractional Kirchhoff equation with a general critical nonlinearity, Appl. Math. Lett., 74 (2017), 140–146.
- [3] G. Kirchhoff, Vorlesungen uber Mechanik, 3rd Edn. Teubner, Leipzig, (1883).
- [4] Z. Liu, M. Squassina and J. Zhang, Ground states for fractional Kirchhoff equations with critical nonlinearity in low dimension, Nonlinear Differ. Equ. Appl., 24: 50 (2017).
- [5] M. Massar and M. Talbi, Radial solutions for a fractional Kirchhoff type equation in \mathbb{R}^N , Indian J. Pure Appl. Math., (2021), 1–6.
- [6] S. Mosconi, K. Perera, M. Squassina and Y. Yang, The Brezis-Nirenberg problem for the fractional *p*-Laplacian, Calc. Var. Partial Differential Equations, 55 (2016), 55–105.
- [7] E. Silva and G. Vieira, Quasilinear asymptotically periodic Schrödinger equations with critical growth, Calc. Var. Partial Differential Equations, 39 (2010), 1–33.
- [8] L. Zhang, X. Tang and S. Chen, Multiple solutions for fractional Kirchhoff equation with critical or supercitical nonlinearity, Appl. Math. Lett., (2021), 119.
- [9] F. Zhou and M. Yang, Solutions for a Kirchhoff type problem with critical exponent in \mathbb{R}^N , J. Math. Anal. Appl., 494 (2021), 124638.

47 Speed Up The Convergence rate Via Tensor Extrapolation Methods

Ridwane Tahiri^{1,*}, Abdslem Hafid Bentbib¹, Khalide Jbilou²

¹ Faculty of Sciences and techniques Gueliz, University of Cadi Ayyad, Marrakech, Morocco.

² Université du Littoral Cote d'Opale, France.

* Correspondig author: tahiri0ridwane@gmail.com

Abstract

It's well-known that vector extrapolation methods such as Minimal Polynomial Extrapolation method (MPE) and Reduced Rank Extrapolation method (MPE) are widely used in scientific computation. Our purpose in this work is to present a generalization of these methods for tensor sequences. The proposed methods involve only the terms of sequences that result from iterative methods. Our approach is based on the notion of the n-mode minimal polynomial of a matrix with respect to a tensor. This polynomial will be used, through the iterative solution of some tensor linear systems, to introduce the tensor version of MPE and RRE. The implementation of these methods on some sequences of tensors confirms the effectiveness and applicability of our approach.

Keywords: Multilinear algebra, N-mode product, Tensor Extrapolation method, Convergence acceleration..

- [1] Aitken, A.: On Bernoulli's Numerical Solution of Algebraic Equations. Proceedings of the Royal Society of Edinburgh. 46, 289-305 (1927)
- [2] El Ichi, A., Jbilou, K., Sadaka, R.: Tensor Global Extrapolation Methods Using the n-Mode and the Einstein Products, Mathematics. 8, 1298 (2020)
- [3] Sidi, A.: Vector Extrapolation Methods with Applications. society for Industrial and Applied Mathematics. 10.1137/1.9781611974966.ch1. 31-64 (2017)

48 Study of some non-coercive quasilinear parabolic problem in anisotropic Sobolev space

AYMANE EI JANATHI¹, SAID EL MANOUNI², HASSANE HJIAJ³

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Imam Mohammad Ibn SaudIslamic (IMISU), Riyadh, Saudi Arabia.

³ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. El JANATHI aymane.eljanathi@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

This paper is devoted to investigate the existence of renormalized solutions for the following quasilinear parabolic problem :

$$\begin{cases} u_t + Au = f(x, t, u, \nabla u) & \text{ in } \Omega \times (0, T) = Q_T, \\ u = 0 & \text{ on } S_T \\ u(0, x) = u_0(x) & \text{ in } \Omega; \end{cases}$$

in the parabolic anisotropic Sobolev space. Where the term on the right-hand side $f(x, t, s, \xi)$ verify only some growth condition. Also we conclude some regularity results.

Keywords: Quasilinear parabolic equations, non-coercive problems, renormalized solutions.

- Y. Akdim, C.Allalou, N. El gorch, M. Mekkour: Entropy Solutions of Nonlinear p(x)-Parabolic InequalitiesNonlinear. Dynamics and Systems Theory, 18 (2) (2018) 1-23. Received: March, 16, 2017; Revised: March 29, 2018.
- [2] A. Benkirane, Y. El Hadfi, M. El Moumni :Existence results for doubly nonlinear parabolic equations with two lower odrer terms and L1-data.Ukrainian Mathematical Journal · October 2019.
- [3] M. Chrif, S.E. Manouni, H. Hjiaj : On the study of strongly parabolic problems involving anisotropic operators in L1. Monatsh Math 195, 611–647 (2021).
- [4] J. L. Lions, Quelques Methodes de Résolution des Problèmes aux Limites non Linéaires, Dunodet Gauthiers-Villars, Paris, 1969.
49 Adjusting support in CSRBF function interpolation for BEMD decomposition

Mohammed ARRAZAKI¹, Othman EL OUAHABI², Hamza EL BAZI³

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² National School of Applied Sciences, University AbdelMalek Essaadi, Tangier, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Sciences, University of Moulay Ismail, Errachidia, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: rezaki_mohamed@hotmail.com

Abstract

Several time-frequency analysis method have been developed, including the Fourier transform and the wavelet transform. In the case of non-stationary and non-linear signals, the previous techniques of time-frequency analysis remain unsuitable for this type of signal, despite their further developments. The bidimensional empirical mode decomposition (BEMD) [4], is a new time-frequency analysis method invented to overcome this problem. This decomposition enables the extraction of structures at different scales and frequencies, including amplitude and frequency modulations.

The major obstacle to this decomposition is the computational complexity, most of this calculation is done in the extremum interpolation phase. Several versions of the BEMD developed with different interpolation functions to minimize the cost and maintain the quality of this decomposition. One of the methods that show good results in terms of computational complexity and maintaining the quality of the decoposition is the BEMD with Compactly Supported Radial Basis Functions (BEMD- CSRBF) [2]. Despite the effectiveness of CSRBF functions, especially in terms of computational complexity, the choice of support size for these functions plays an important role in the quality of the BEMD, in particular that this decomposition is iterative, at each iteration we get a different number of extrema and a different distribution in space.

In this context, we will present in this article a study on the influence of the support size of the compactly supported radial Basis functions (Wendland functions [3]) on the BEMD, either in terms of computational complexity or decomposition quality. Finally, we propose a method to adjust the size of the support during the algorithm.

Keywords: Time-frequency analysis, Decomposition BEMD, CSRBF functions, Wendland functions

- [1] M. Arrazaki, T, Zougari, L'utilisation de fonction radiale de base à support compact pour accélérer le temps de décomposition BEMD. IOSR Journal of VLSI and Signal Processing, 4(3) (2014), 24–29.
- [2] G. E. Fasshauer, Meshfree Approximation Methods with Matlab, 85-92 p, Interdisciplinary Mathematical Sciences, USA (2007).

50 On the asymptotic behavior of radial solutions to quasilinear elliptic equations with a Hardy potential

Mouhssin Bakhadda¹, Arij Bouzelmate^{2,*}

¹ Laboratory LaR2A, Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: mouhssin017@gmail.com

Abstract

In this work, we are interested in studying the quasilinear elliptic equation with a Hardy potential.

$$div(|x|^{\alpha}|\nabla u|^{p-2}\nabla u) + \frac{\mu}{|x|^{p-\alpha}}|u|^{p-2}u = 0, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^N - \{0\},$$

where $N \ge 1$; p > 2; q > 1; $\alpha \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\mu \in \mathbb{R}^*$. In the first part, we show the existence of radial solutions in the case $\alpha = 0$. In the second part, we wrote the radial solutions in the form of the first order differential system

$$\begin{cases} x' = ax + b\Phi_q(y) \\ y' = c\Phi_p(x) + dy, \end{cases}$$

where $a, b, c, d \in \mathbb{R}$ and $\Phi_p(s) = |s|^{p-2}s$ for all $s \in \mathbb{R}$, which can be solved by the eigenvalues of the matrix $A = \begin{pmatrix} a & b \\ c & d \end{pmatrix}$, this means that the roots of the characteristic equation $(\lambda - a)(\lambda - d) - bc = 0$. In this section, the characteristic equation of the autonomous planar semilinear differential system is introduced, and the asymptotic behavior of its solutions is established by the roots of the characteristic equation.

Keywords: Quasilinear, elliptic equation, radial self-similar solution, Hardy potential, p-Laplacian, existence and uniqueness, energy function, asymptotic behavior, semi linear system, characteristic equation, eigenvalues, eigenvector, equilibrium point.

- [1] M. F. Bidaut-Veron, The p-Laplacien heat equation with a source term: self-similar solutions revisited, Advanced Nonlinear Studies, 6 (2006), 69–108.
- [2] A. Bouzelmate and A. Gmira, On the Radial Solutions of a Nonlinear Singular Elliptic Equation, Electronic Journal of Differential Equations, Vol. 9, 2015, no. 26, 1279 - 1297.67, pp 121.206.
- [3] K.Itakura and S.Tanaka, A note on the asymptotic behavior of radial solutions to quasilinear elliptic equations with a Hardy potential, Acta Math. Hungar., 152 (2) (2017), 336–364.

51 Approximation in some spaces of analytic functions

Hafid Bahajji-El Idrissi^{1,*}, Hamza El Azhar², Omar El-Fallah³

¹ École Normale Supérieure, Mohammed V University, Rabat, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Chouaïb Doukkali, El-Jadida, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Sciences, Mohammed V University, Rabat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: bahajjielidrissihafid@gmail.com

Abstract

We give an elementary proof of the approximation theorem established by A. Matheson for λ_{α} analytic Lipschitz spaces. Our approach allows us to extend this approximation theorem to superharmonically weighted Dirichlet spaces (including standard Dirichlet spaces) and to some analytic Besov spaces. As a consequence, we give a complete description of closed ideals for some analytic function algebras.

Keywords: Lipschitz spaces, Superharmonically weighted Dirichlet spaces, analytic Besov spaces, closed ideals.

- [1] H. Bahajji-El Idrissi and H. El Azhar , Analytic Besov spaces, Approximation and Closed Ideals, Canad. Math. Bull., 66(2023), 259-268.
- [2] H. Bahajji-El Idrissi and O. El-Fallah, Approximation in spaces of analytic functions. Studia Math. 255 (2020), 209–217.
- [3] B. Bouya, Closed ideals in some algebras of analytic functions. Canad. J. Math. 61 (2009), 282–298.
- [4] A. Matheson. Closed ideals in rings of analytic functions satisfying a Lipschitz condition. In Banach spaces of analytic functions, pages 67–72. Springer, 1977.

52 A fixed point approach to stability for a Cauchy-Jensen type functional equation in n-Banach space

Khaled SAYAR¹

¹ Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Education at Al-Mahweet, Sana'a University, Yemen.

* Correspondig author: K Y N SAYAR khaledsayar@gmail.com

Abstract

The aim of this work is to provide and study the applications of the fixed point theorem (using the Brzdęk fixed point approach) to prove a new type of stability results of a Cauchy-Jensen type functional equation in n-Banach space.

Keywords: fixed point, 2-Banach space, n-Banach space, Cauchy-Jensen functional equation, stability.

- J. Brzdęk and K. Ciepliński, A fixed point theorem in n-Banach spaces and Ulam stability. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, 470(1) 2019, 632-646.
- [2] D. H. Hyers, On the stability of the linear functional equation, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A., 27(1941), 222–224.
- [3] K. Y. N. Sayar and A. Bergam, K.Y.N. Sayar, A. Bergam Approximate solutions of a quadratic functional equation in 2-Banach spaces using fixed point theorem. J. Fixed Point Theory Appl. 22, 3 (2020).

53 A Metaheuristic Approach to Improve Consistency of the Pairwise Matrix in AHP

Tajani Z.¹, Tajani C.^{2,*}, El Khatabi I.², Sabbane M.¹

 ¹ Faculty of sciences, Moulay Ismail University Avenue Zitoune, 11201, Meknes, Morocco
²Polydisciplinary faculty of Larache, Abdelmalek Essaadi University 745, Omar Ben Abdelaziz Avenue, 92004, Larache, Morocco
* Correspondig author: ch.tajani@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we are interested in modifying inconsistent pairwise comparison matrix which is a critical step in the AHP methodology, where decision maker's have to improve consitency by revising the process. To this end, we propose an improved genetic algorithm (GA) to allow decision meker's to find an apropriate matrix and adjust the consistency of their judgment without loss of original comparison matrix. Numerical results with different dimensions of matrices taken randomly show the effectiveness of these strategy to improve and identify the consistency of pairwise matrix which mean that GAs are a very good tool to genrate consistent pairwise comparison matrices with different number of criteria.

Keywords: Genetic Algorithm, Pairwise Matrix, Analytic Hierarchy Process, Decision theory, Consistency.

54 On the Periodic Solutions for a class of Partial Differential Equation with Delay

Abdelhai El Azzouzi^{1,*}, Khalil Ezzinbi², Mohammed Kricher¹

¹ Faculty Polydisciplinary of Taza, LSI Laboratory, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Taza, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Cadi Ayyad university, Marrakesh, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. El Azzouzi : abdelhai.elazzouzi@usmba.ac.ma

Abstract

Trough this work we investigate the periodicity of solutions for a class of partial differential equations with infinite delay of the form w'(t) = Lw(t) + D(wt) + H(t). We suppose that the operator (L, D(L)) is generally nondensely defined operator and verifies the Hille-Yosida condition. Using the theory of perturbation of semi-Fredholm operators, we propose, when the phase space is a fading memory space, some sufficient conditions on the linear operators L and D to guarantee the periodicity of solutions of this class of partial differential equations from bounded ones on the positive real halfline. In addition, we consider the case where the operator L is a sum of two operators, the first one verifies the Hille-Yosida condition and the second one is a bounded linear operator. In this case, we give in the both situations of fading and uniformfading memory space, more sufficient conditions to derive periodic solutions from bounded ones. All this, without considering neither the compactness nor the exponential stability of the semigroup generated by the part of L on the closure of it's domain. At the end, an application with numerical

Keywords: Semigroup, Hille-Yosida condition, integral solutions, semi-Fredholm operators, Poincaré map, periodic solution, Simulation.

- [1] S. N. Chow and J. K. Hale, Strongly limit-compact maps, Funkcial. Ekvac. 17, (1974), 31-38.
- [2] N. Dunford and J. T. Schwartz, Linear operators, Part I, Wiley-Interscience, NewYork, (1987).
- [3] A. Elazzouzi, K. Ezzinbi, Ultimate boundedness and periodicity for some partial functional differential equations with infinite delay, J. Math. Anal. Appl. 329, (2007), 498-514.
- [4] A. Elazzouzi, K. Ezzinbi, and M. Kriche, Periodic solution for some class of linear partial differential equation with infinite delay

55 Exponential stabilization for a semi-linear systems with discrete multi-delays

Ayoub CHEDDOUR^{1,*}, Abdelhai EL AZZOUZI²

¹ University of Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah-USMBA, Fes, FP Taza.

* Correspondig author: A. CHEDDOUR : ayoub.cheddour@usmba.ac.ma

Abstract

The multi-delays system has been studied by many researchers using several methods and approaches such as the Lyapunov method, for more details on this subject, we refer to [3,4] and references therein. This class of equations are initiated in control theory due to their simple forms and also to their applicability in many and different real-life problems such as biology, economics, engineering, chemistry, for more details about this subject the reader can see for example [5] and references therein. In this paper we investigate the stability for a semi-linear systems with discrete multi-delays on a Hilbert state space. Firstly, we discuss the well possedness of mild solutions of the considered systems. Secondly, some sufficient conditions are given to guarantee the feedback stabilization for the semi-linear systems. The stabilization results are given in term of observation estimates. At the end, examples with numerical simulations are given to show the applicability of our theoretical results.

Keywords: Feedback stabilization, semi-linear, multi-delays.

- [1] Ammari, K., Tucsnak, M. (2000). Stabilization of Bernoulli-Euler beams by means of a pointwise feedback force. SIAM J Control Optim, 39(4), pp. 1160-1181.
- [2] Cheddour, A., Ouzahra, M., Hamidi, Z. (2021). Weak and Exponential stabilization for a semi- linear systems with discrete multi-delays. Journal of Dynamical and Control Systems DOI:10.1007/s10883-022-09611-3.
- [3] JinRong, Wang., Zijian, Luo. (2017). Finite time stability of semilinear multi-delay differential systems, Transactions of the Institute of Measurement and Control, 40, pp. 2948-2959.
- [4] Min-Shin, Chen. (1998).Exponential stabilization of a constrained bilinear system. Automatica , 34, pp. 989-992.
- [5] Mohler, R.R. (1973). Bilinear Control Processes: With Applications to Engineering, Ecology and Medicine. New York: Academic Press.

² Department of mathematics, B.P. 1223, Taza, Morocco.

56 Central finite volume methods for nonlocal traffic flow models with arrhenius-type look-ahead rules

Said Belkadi^{1,*}, Mohamed Atounti¹

¹ Multidisciplinary Faculty of Nador, University of Mohammed First, 62702 Selouane-Nador, Morocco

* Correspondig author: S. Belkadi s.belkadi.said@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, we describe a central finite volume method and apply it to a new class of traffic flow model with an Arrhenius-type look-ahead interaction. These models can be written as a scalar conservation law with a nonlocal flux. The proposed scheme is an extension of the Nessyahu-Tadmor non-oscillatory central scheme, which belongs to a class of projection evolution finite volume methods. We demonstrate the robustness and high resolution achieved by the proposed method. We also perform a numerical convergence test, a comparison of the solutions of the equations with nonlocal and local fluxes, and a study of the dependence of the numerical solution on the look-ahead distance.

Keywords: Finite volume methods, non-local conservation laws, traffic flow models

- [1] S. Belkadi, M. Atounti, Non oscillatory central scheme for general nonlocal traffic flow models, Int. J. Appl. Math., **35** (2022), 518-528.
- [2] S. Blandin, P. Goatin, *Well-posedness of a conservation law with non-local flux arising in traffic flow modeling*, Numer. Math., **132**(2016), 217-241
- [3] A. Kurganov and A. Polizzi, *Non-oscillatory central schemes for a traffic flow model with Arrehenius look-ahead dynamics*, Netw. Heterog. Media., 4(2009), 431–451.
- [4] H. Nessyahu, E. Tadmor, *Non-oscillatory central differencing for hyperbolic conservation laws*, J. Comput. Phys., **87**(1990), 408–463.

57 Some results on regional optimal control problem for fractional systems with time-varying delays in the state

Wadii Ghandor¹, Ahmed Aberqi², Touria Karite^{3 1,2} Mathematical Analysis and

Applications Laborator , Department of Mathematical , Faculty of Sciences, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Fez, Morocco .

³ National School of Applied Sciences, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Avenue My Abdallah, Fez BP 72, Morocco.

Abstract

Mathematically, the system will be represented by a virtual model based on equations and signs, that is to say a model, Fractional systems have been proved, with the development of science and technology, to be one of the most effective tools in modeling many phenomena arising in physics, engineering, and real world problems, Currently, qualitative properties such as observability, controllability, stabilizability of fractional-order dynamical systems are the issues dealt with by scholars. A fundamental concept widely used in the analysis and design of control systems in modern control theory is Controllability. Adding to that the concept of regional controllability, this would be more interesting especially for researchers who work on applied problems. This concept appears while one is studying or treating a phenomena and maybe he is interested in some regions more than others. This notion has been introduced by El Jai et al. (1995) for parabolic linear systems. We will discuss here the regional controllability of fractional control systems with time-varying delays in the state using the classical Caputo derivative. We first present the considered system and we give some preliminary results and we present some obtained results.

Keywords: regional controllability; fractional-order systems; Caputo derivatives; time-varying delays in the state ;optimal control; minimum energy.

- [1] Jackreece, PC and Godspower, CA and Ugorji, HC, Controllability of Fractional-order Dynamical System with Time Varying-Delays, General Letters in Mathematics, Vol. 5, No.3, Dec 2018, pp.148-156
- [2] A. El Jai, A. J. Pritchard, M. C. Simon and E. Zerrik, Regional controllability of distributed systems, International Journal of Control, vol. 62, 1995, pp. 1351–1365.
- [3] Karite, T. Khazari, A.Torres, D.F.M. Regional Controllability and Minimum Energy Control of Delayed Caputo Fractional-Order Linear Systems. Mathematics 2022, 10(24), 4813.

58 STABILIZATION OF SEMILINEAR SYSTEMS IN BA-NACH SPACE

A. El Alami*, Z. Echchaffani and A. Aberqi

* Research Center STIS, Team M2CS, ENSAM, Department of Mathematics and informatics ,University of Mouhammed V of Rabat, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Fez, Morocco * *Correspondig author: a.elalami@umr5.ac.ma*

Abstract

In this paper, we aim to study the feedback stabilization of an infinite-dimensional semilinear system evolving in reflexive Banach state space. The concept of bounded control is also investigated in the realistic domain. Sufficient conditions for appropriate feedback control to ensure strong and weak stabilization are given.

Keywords: infinite semi-linear system; duality mapping; feedback controls; strong stabilization; decay estimate; weak stabilization.

59 Non vanishing and Sign changes of Modular Forms ((ID 63))

Abdelmonaim Bouchikhi¹, Soufiane Mezroui²

Ensa Tanger, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: bouchikhi.abdelmonaim@gmail.com*

Abstract

The goal of this paper is to examine the properties of the (simultaneous) non vanishing and the (simultaneous) sign changes of Fourier coefficients for (two) modular forms called *h* multiplicative modular forms $f(z) = \sum_{n\geq 1} a(n)q^n \in S_k(\Gamma_0(N))$, satisfying the arithmetic relation

 $a(p^k) = a(p)a(p^{k-1}) - h(p)a(p^{k-2}), \quad a(1) = 1$

where h is a multiplicative function.

Keywords: Fourier coefficients of cusp forms, Modular forms, Sign change of cusp forms.

- [1] R. Agnihotri, K. Chakraborty, Sign changes of certain arithmetical function at prime powers Czechoslovak Mathematical Journal. 71(4), 1221-1228 (2021).
- [2] D. Bump, Automorphic forms and representations, Cambridge university press, (1998).
- [3] S. Gun, W. Kohnen, P. Rath, Simultaneous sign change of Fourier-coefficients of two cusp forms, Archiv der Mathematik, 105, 413-424 (2015).

60 On the Non-negative Integer Solutions to Diophantine Equations $F_n-F_m=7^a$ and $F_n-F_m=13^a$

Anouar Gaha¹, Soufiane Mezroui²

ENSA Tanger, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: anouar.louis.gaha@gmail.com*

Abstract

In this paper, we study the solutions of the equation $F_n - F_m = p^a$ where p is either 7 or 13 and $n > m \ge 0$, $a \ge 2$. We confirm the conjecture of Erduvan and Keskin by proving that there is no solutions for this Diophantine equation. We will use the lower bounds for linear forms in logarithms (Baker's theory) and a version of the Baker-Davenport reduction method in Diophantine approximation.

Keywords: Diophantine equation, Fibonacci and Lucas numbers, Linear forms in logarithms, continued fraction, Baker's reduction method.

- [1] B. Demirtürk Bitim and R. Keskin, On the solutions of the Diophantine equation $F_n F_m = 3^a$, Proc. Indian Acad. Sci. Math. Sci. 129 (1) (2019), 81.
- [2] F. Erduvan and R. Keskin, Nonnegative integer solutions of the equation $F_n F_m = 5^a$, Turkish J. Math. 43 (2019), 1115-1123.
- [3] Z. Şiar and R. Keskin, On the equation $F_n F_m = 2^a$, Colloq. Math. 159 (1) (2020), 119-126.

61 Renormalized solutions for some nonlinear and noncoercive parabolic problem in the anistropic sobolev spaces.

MOUSSA CHRIF¹, HASSANE HJIAJ², MOHAMED SASY^{3,*}

¹ Regional Center of Education and Training Professions (CRMEF) Scientific Research and Pedagogical Development Laboratory, Research Team in Mathematics and Didactics, Meknes, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: S. Mohamed : mohamed.sasy@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

This paper is devoted to the study of following nonlinear and noncoercive parabolic problem:

 $\begin{cases} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + Au = f - \operatorname{div}(\phi(x, t, u)) & \text{ in } \Omega \times (0, T) = Q_T, \\ u(0, x) = u_0(x) & \text{ in } \Omega \\ u = 0 & \text{ on } \partial\Omega \times (0, T); \end{cases}$

in the paraboliqc anistropic Sobolev spaces $L^{\vec{p}}(0,T;W_0^{1,\vec{p}}(\Omega))$, where Ω is a bounded open set of \mathbb{R}^N ($N \ge 2$), and $\phi = (\phi_1, \phi_2 \dots \phi_N)$ is Carateodory operator verifies the nonstandard growth condition and $f \in L^1(Q_T)$. We show the existance of ronormalized solutions for this parabolic equation

Keywords: Nonlinear parabolic equations, non-coercive problems, Renormalized solutions. parabolic anistropic spaces.

- [1] Chrif, M., Manouni, S.E. and Hjiaj, H. On the study of strongly parabolic problems involving anisotropic operators in L1. Monatsh Math 195, 611-647 (2021).
- [2] R. J. Diperna and P.-L. Lions, On the Cauchy problem for Boltzmann equations: global existence and weak stability, Ann. of Math. (2), (1989) vol. 130 (2):321-366.
- [3] Chrif, M., Manouni, S.E. and Hjiaj, H. On the study of strongly parabolic problems involving anisotropic operators in L1. Monatsh Math 195, 611-647 (2021).
- [4] J. L. Lions, Quelques Methodes de Résolution des Problèmes aux Limites non Linéaires, Dunod et Gauthiers-Villars, Paris, 1969.

62 Mathematical analysis and numerical simulation of the Ebola Epidemic Disease in The Sense of Conformable Fractional Derivative

A. OUAKKA,¹, A. El AZZOUZI¹, Z. HAMMOUCH²

¹ Poly disciplinary Faculty of Taza, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Fes, Department of Mathematics, BP.1223, Taza, Morocco

² Department of Sciences, ENS Meknes, Moulay Ismail University, Morocco

* Correspondig author:

Abstract

The aim of this talk is to presnt a mathematical model for the response of T-cytotoxic lymphocytes to the Ebola virus using the Herz-tuckwill model with nonlinear conformable fractional order differential equations which derive from real biological data, then study the global stability of the equilibria using an appropriate Lyapunov function and the LaSalle invariance principle. Furthermore, we demonstrate the impact of the non-integer order of the model compared with the integral order. Finally consider a numerical simulation that justifies the biological hypotheses and the theory results.

Keywords: Conformable derivative, Local stability, Exponential stability, Lyapunov function, Fractional epidemic model.

63 Ozone Concentration Forecasting Using LSTM Recurrent Neural Network in Tangier: A Comparative Analysis

Nisrine Marrakchi^{1,*}, Amal Bergam¹, Hanane Fakhouri¹ and Kenza Khomsi²

¹ Team SMAD, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Larache, Morocco.

² DGM - National Climate Center, Air Quality Department, General Directorate of Meteorology

* Correspondig author: N. Marrakchi : nisrine.marrakchi@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

This study consists in solving the problem of air quality forecasting in the town of Tangier, by presenting a model based on artificial neural networks. Air pollution problems in Tangier are linked to several pollutants that include the tropospheric ozone (O3). Which is becoming more worried. Predicting daily concentrations of this pollutant can play a major role in reducing potential risks.[1] This work aims to make a good prediction of daily concentrations of O3 in the city of Tangier using two types of recurrent neural networks (RNN): the simpleRNN model and the Long Short-Term Memory (LSTM) architecture. In each experiment using these two algorithms, we changed the input data to investigate the relationship between predictors and performance.[2] To evaluate our forecasting model, we graphically represented the predicted and the observed values. The error was quantified using several evaluate indexes: the Mean Square Error (MSE), the Root Mean Square Error (RMSE), the Mean Absolute Error (MAE), and the Index of agreement. The numerical results indicate that both algorithms worked well, but the LSTM model shows that it is more effective at forecasting O3 concentrations than simple RNN architecture.

Keywords: Air quality forecasting, Artificial Neural Network, Recurrent Neural Networks (RNN), Long Short-Term Memory (LSTM), Ozone (O3).

- [1] A. G. Mata, A comparison between LSTM and Facebook Prophet models: a financial forecasting case study, Universital Oberta de Catalunya, 2020.
- [2] W. Tamas, G. Notton, C. Paoli, C. Voyant, M.-L. Nivet, and A. Balu, Urban Ozone Concentration Forecasting with Artificial Neural Network in Corsica, Modelling in Civil Environmental Engineering, 2014, 10.1: 29-37.

64 Some numerical results of the Brinkman problem using generalised Taylor-Hood elements

Lahcen EL OUADEFLI^{1,*}, Abdeslam EL AKKAD², Ahmed ELKHALFI¹

¹ Faculty of sciences and techniques, Mechanical engineering laboratory, Fez, Morocco.

² Department of mathematics Regional Centre for Professions of Education and Training, Fez, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: L. EL OUADEFLI : lahcen.elouadefli@usmba.ac.ma

Abstract

This paper presents our numerical results of applying Isogeometric Analysis (IGA) to the velocity-pressure formulation of the steady-state incompressible Brinkman equations. For the approximation of the velocity and pressure fields, LBB-compatible Bspline spaces are used which can be regarded as smooth generalizations of Taylor-Hood pairs of finite element spaces. The lid-driven cavity flow is considered in two dimensions as model problems to investigate the scheme's numerical properties.

Keywords: NURBS, Brinkman problem, convergence-free, isogeometric methods.

- Bazilevs, Yuri, et al. Isogeometric analysis: approximation, stability and error estimates for h-refined meshes. Mathematical Models and Methods in Applied Sciences 16.07 (2006): 1031-1090.
- [2] Brinkman, Hendrik C. On the permeability of media consisting of closely packed porous particles. Flow, Turbulence and Combustion 1.1 (1949): 81-86.
- [3] Buffa, A. Carlo De Falco, and G. Sangalli. Isogeometric analysis: stable elements for the 2D Stokes equation. International Journal forNumerical Methods in Fluids 65.11-12 (2011): 1407-1422.
- [4] Cottrell, J. Austin, Thomas JR Hughes, and Yuri Bazilevs. Isogeometric analysis: toward integration of CAD and FEA. John Wiley, Sons, 2009.
- [5] Da Veiga, L. Beirao, et al. Mathematical analysis of variational isogeometric methods. Acta Numerica 23 (2014): 157-287.
- [6] De Falco, Carlo, Alessandro Reali, and R. Vázquez. GeoPDEs: a research tool for isogeometric analysis of PDEs. Advances in Engineering Software 42.12 (2011): 1020-1034.
- [7] El Ouadefli, Lahcen, et al. Numerical Simulation for Brinkman System with Varied Permeability Tensor. Mathematics 10.18 (2022): 3242.

65 New Hybrid Finite Volume Scheme for Air Quality on Vertex-Centred Mesh

Abdelaziz CHAHED^{1,2,*}, Amal BERGAM¹, Anouar EL HARRAK²

¹ SMAD, FPL, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

² MMA, FPL, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: abdelaziz.chahed@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

The Advection-Diffusion-Reaction equation is commonly used to model air quality problems [3]. Finite Volume schemes have been developed to solve this equation, with some schemes designed for advection or diffusion-dominated problems [2, 4]. However, some existing schemes have limitations in accurately predicting system behavior, particularly in scenarios where there are high pollutant concentrations or complex sources with dominant advection. Due to these limitations, the numerical solutions could become unstable or inaccurate, leading to errors in predicting the behavior of the system. To address these limitations, we introduce a new Hybrid Finite Volume Scheme that can effectively solve the Advection-Diffusion-Reaction equation, even in situations where neither advection nor diffusion is dominant. This scheme is particularly useful for modeling air quality problems, especially when the advection process is dominant over diffusion. We use this new scheme to conduct numerical simulations of air quality problems and illustrate its performance in such applications. This new hybrid Finite Volume scheme has been proposed for vertex-centered meshes. It offers significant improvements in accuracy and computational efficiency, making it a promising approach for air quality problems.

Keywords: Finite Volume methods, Advection-Diffusion-Reaction, Dominant Advection, Air Quality, Advection scheme.

- [1] Wang, Yongqi, and Kolumban Hutter. Comparisons of numerical methods with respect to convectively dominated problems. International journal for numerical methods in fluids 37.6 (2001): 721-745.
- [2] Mallet, Vivien. Estimation de l'incertitude et prévision d'ensemble avec un modèle de chimie transport-Application à la simulation numérique de la qualité de l'air. Diss. Ecole des Ponts ParisTech, 2005.
- [3] Hussain, Arafat, Zhoushun Zheng, and Eyaya Fekadie Anley. "Numerical analysis of convection–diffusion using a modified upwind approach in the finite volume method." Mathematics 8.11 (2020): 1869.

66 GENERATION OF 2-D UNSTRUCTURED MESH US-ING A NOVEL ALGORITHM FOR NODE PLACEMENT

Mohamed MRINI^{1,2,*}, Amal BERGAM¹, Anouar EL HARRAK²

¹SMAD, FPL, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

² MMA, FPL, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: mohamed.mrini3@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

The use of meshes has become increasingly important across various industries, including architecture, automotive engineering, and aerospace. Proper node placement is critical for obtaining accurate and efficient numerical simulations in these applications. Node placement methods vary depending on the complexity of the geometry, the desired resolution of the mesh, and the computational resources available. In some cases, simple algorithms, such as regular grids or random placement, may be sufficient. However, more advanced methods, such as optimization-based algorithms or machine learning techniques, may be necessary for complex geometries or highresolution meshes. Overall, proper node placement is a crucial component of any meshing algorithm, and choosing an appropriate method can significantly impact the quality and efficiency of numerical simulations. In this work, we introduce a novel algorithm for determining the placement of nodes based on a user-defined size function. The creation of well-shaped triangles, similar to Distmesh algorithm[1], can be achieved by connecting the nodes using Delaunay triangulation. However, In the smoothing step, an internode force with an attractive effect is employed. Additionally, this work presents enhancements to Distmesh algorithm, specifically in regards to creating a nonuniform triangular mesh according to a user-defined size function [2,3].

Keywords: Mesh generation, Node placement, Distmesh.

- [1] Per-Olof Persson and Gilbert Strang. A simple mesh generator in matlab. SIAM review(2004), 46(2) :329–345.
- [2] Jonas Koko. A matlab mesh generator for the two-dimensional finite element method. Applied Mathematics and Computation(2015), 250:650–664.
- [3] Zönnchen, B and Köster, G. A parallel generator for sparse unstructured meshes to solve the eikonal equation. Journal of Computational Science(2019), 32, 141-147.

67 Exploring the Applications of DC Programming in Support Vector Machine Learning

Najoua Aafar^{1,*}, Ahmed El Hilali Alaoui², Bouchaib Ferrahi¹

¹ LaR2A, Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Euromed University, Fez, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: N. Aafar najoua.aafar@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

DC programming, a method for breaking down complex optimization problems into simpler ones, and Support Vector Machines (SVMs), a learning algorithm, are both widely used techniques in the field of optimization and machine learning. When combined, these techniques have been proven to be effective in solving various optimization problems, particularly those related to classification and feature selection. This paper highlights the key uses of DC programming in the context of Support Vector Machines (SVMs) for classification and feature selection, and presents the current state-of-the-art results and recent advancements.

Keywords: DC programming, Support Vector Machine (SVM), Feature Selection, Classification.

- [1] Akoa, F.B. Combining DC algorithms (DCAs) and decomposition techniques for the training of nonpositive-semidefinite kernels. *IEEE Transactions on Neural Networks*, *19*.(11),(2008), 1854-1872.
- [2] Alam, S., Kwon, G.-R., Kim, J.-I., & Park, C.-S. Twin SVM-based classication of Alzheimer disease using complex dual-tree wavelet principal coefficients and LDA. *Journal of Healthcare Engineering*, (2017).
- [3] Ali, J., Aldhaifallah, M., Nisar, K.S., Aljabr, A. & Tanveer, M. Regularized least squares twin svm for multiclass classification. *Big Data Research* 27, 100295,(2022).
- [4] An, Y. & Xue, H. Indefinite twin support vector machine with DC functions programming, *Elsevier Ltd*,(2022).
- [5] Astorino, A., Fuduli, A., Giallombardo, G. & Miglionico, G. SVM-based multiple instance classification via DC optimization. *Algorithms*, *12*(12),(2019).
- [6] Bazikar, F., Ketabchi, S. & Moosaei, H. DC programming and DCA for parametricmargin v-support vector machine, *Applied Intelligence*, 50(6),(2020),1763-1774.
- [7] Bennett, K. P. & Mangasarian, O. L. Robust linear programming discrimination of two linearly inseparable sets. *Optimization Methods and Software*, 1, (1992),23–34.

68 A NEW CLASS OF WEAK* SEQUENTIALLY COMP-CAT AND ITS RELATIONSHIP WITH LIMITED OP-ERATORS

Abdennabi EL ALOUI¹, Khalid BOURAS², Mohamed LAHROUZ³

 ¹ MMA, FPL, Faculty, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.
e-mail: dehmanabdennabi@gmail.com
²MMA, FPL, Faculty, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.
e-mail: k.bouras@uae.ac.ma
³Department of Mathematics, FS, Faculty, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, BP 2121, Tetouan-93000, Morocco.
e-mail: m.lahrouz@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper we introduce and study a new class $W_{s,c}^*(X, Y)$ of operators defined from a Banch space X into a Banch space Y that we call weak* sequentially compact operators. Then, we give some results concerning this class of operators between the Banach lattices. Furthermore, we study the relationship between this class and other classes of operators, some other interesting results are also obtained.

Keywords: Limited operator, Dunford-Pettis operator, Banach lattice, Order continuous norm.

69 Strong Nash implementation in finite and infinite fair allocation problems

Mohamed Bouchta¹, Ahmed Doghmi^{2,*}, Abderahmane Ziad³

^{1,2} National Institute of Statistics and Applied Economics, Madinat Al Irfane, Rabat Institutes, 10100 Rabat, Morocco.

³ CNRS, CREM-UNICAEN-University of Caen Normandy-NU-Normandy University, France and Laboratory of Computer Science and Mathematics, Ferhat Abbas University of Setif 1, Setif, Algeria.

* Correspondig author: A. Doghmi doghmi@insea.ac.ma

Abstract

Strong implementation is a challenging problem for which there is no theorem similar to that of Maskin (1977/1999) for Nash implementation with simple conditions, which involves a wide range of applications. In this paper, we reexamine the origins of the Maskin theorem (1979). We define the concept of bad options that are non-fixed and are weakly dominated by any socially optimal alternative for (n-1) players, where at least one player strictly prefers his bad option to those of all other players. We use a weak variant of the no-veto power property that, unlike the standard notion, can be verified for several social choice correspondences (SCCs). The main result establishes that any SCC that has (n-1)-option and satisfies the properties - weak Pareto optimality, Maskin monotonicity, weak no-veto power, and unanimity - can be implemented in strong equilibria by a strategic game form if there are at least three players. We finally provide applications of our result in finite fair allocation problems for matching markets, and in infinite fair allocation problems under domain restrictions with private values.

Keywords: Implementation, Strong Nash equilibrium, Fair allocation problems.

- [1] R. Aumann. Acceptable points in general cooperative n-person games. *in Contributions to the Theory of Games IV, Princeton Univ. Press, Princeton, N.J.*, 1959.
- [2] J-P. Benoît and E-A. Ok. Maskin's theorem with limited veto power. *Games and Economic Behavior*, 55:331–339, 2006.
- [3] O. Bochet. Nash implementation with lottery mechanisms. *Social Choice and Wel- fare*, 28:111–125, 2007.
- [4] D. Cantala. Choosing the level of a public good when agents have an outside option. *Social Choice and Welfare*, 22:491–514, 2004.
- [5] L. Corchon. The theory of implementation of socially optimal decisions in economics. *London: Macmillan*, 1996.
- [6] V. Danilov. Implementation via Nash equilibrium. *Econometrica*, 60:43–56, 1992.

70 Central reversible ring property via idempotent elements

ALLACH Yousra^{1,*}, LOUZARI Mohamed ²

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: yousra.allach@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this work, we introduce the concept of central *e*-reversible rings to extend central reversible rings via idempotent elements. These rings generalize *e*-reduced rings, *e*-symmetric rings and *e*-reversible rings. In this talk, we give some characterizations of central *e*-reversible rings in various ways and we show that this notion is not left-right symmetric. Moreover, we examine the transfer of central *e*-reversibility over some various ring extensions.

Keywords: Central *e*-reversible rings, central reversible rings, *e*-reversible rings, idempotent elements.

- U. S. Chakraborty, On some classes of reflexive rings, Asian-European J. Math., 08(01)(2015), 1550003.
- [2] P. M. Cohn, Reversible rings, Bull. London Math. Soc. (31) (1999), 641-648.
- [3] H. Kose, B. Ungor, S. Halicioglu, A. Harmanci, A generalization of reversible rings, Iran. J. Sci. Technol. Trans. A Sci. 38 (1) (2014), 43-48.
- [4] H. Kose, B. Ungor, A. Harmanci, Semicommutativity of rings by the way of idempotent, Filomat, 33(11) (2019), 3497-3508.
- [5] H. Kose, B. Ungor, A. Harmanci, Reversible ring property via idempotent elements, arXiv:2011.10843(2020).
- [6] M. Louzari, Skew polynomial rings over idempotent reflexive and abelian rings, Palestine J. Math 7 (2018).
- [7] F. Meng, J. Wei, *e*-Symmetric rings, Commun. Contemp. Math. 20 (2018), 1750039.

71 AHP-Method and its applications: Review

Youssef KARKOUR¹, Chakir TAJANI²

¹ MAE2D Laboratory, Polydisciplinary Faculty of Larache, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Y. KARKOUR : youssef123karkour@gmail.com

Abstract

Herewe present the analytic hierarchy process (AHP). The Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP) is a decision-making tool developed by mathematician Thomas Saaty in the 1970s. It is a structured approach that allows individuals to make decisions based on multiple criteria, by breaking down a complex problem into smaller, more manageable parts, we then introduce the principe of this method and some of the central thoeretical. The AHP method has a wide range of applications in various fields, including: Project selection, Resource allocation, Environmental impact assessment, Renewable energy.

Keywords: Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP); Decision analysis; Multiple criteria analysis.

- [1] T. L. Saaty and L. G. Vargas, The Logic of Priorities, Applications in Bu,sines.., energy, Health, Transportation. KluwerNijhoff. The Hague (1981).
- [2] P. T. Harker, Alternative modes of questioning in the Analytic Hierarchy Process. Math/ Modelling 9, (1987) 353-360.
- [3] M.J. Schniederjans, T. Garvin, Using the analytic hierarchy process and multiobjective programming for the selection of cost drivers in activity based costing, European Journal of Operational Research 100 (1) (1997) 72-80.

72 Network Visualization and Verbalization of Mathematical Problem Solving in Middle School Students: Modeling Problem Solving Networks

Asmae BAHBAH¹, Mohamed ERRADI²

¹ Ecole Normale Supérieure, University of Abdelmlak Essaâdi, Tetouan, Morocco

² Ecole Normale Supérieure, University of Abdelmlak Essaâdi, Tetouan, Morocco

* Correspondig author: A. BAHBAH : asmae.bahbah@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

Mathematics is a living science and a universal language that allows us to understand reality, and its teaching at all levels develops logical thinking; abstraction capacities and contributes to the acquisition of personal work capacities; self-formation and constructive initiative. This teaching must contribute to the formation of a methodical, inventive and critical human being, gifted in reasoning in a correct and autonomous way, which allows the student to be able to adapt with the cognitive and technological novelties. And since the mastery of the main elements of mathematics is acquired and exercised essentially through problem solving, problem solving has occupied, and still occupies (one of the main competences of the 21st century), a central place in mathematics curricula, either as a means to build new knowledge, to develop general heuristics, to evaluate and validate the acquisition of mathematical knowledge and concepts, or also as an object of teaching in its own right to develop different and essential high level cognitive and metacognitive skills.

Keywords: Mathematics education, problem solving, cognitive processes, modeling, solving networks

- [1] Lajoie, C. and Bednarz, N. (2012). Evolution of problem solving in mathematics education in Quebec: a one hundred year journey of curricula and pedagogical documents. Canadian Journal of Science, Mathematics and Technology Education, 12, 178-213.
- [2] Hanin, V., and Van Nieuwenhoven, C. (2018). Evaluation of a teaching-learning device in mathematical problem solving: Changes in cognitive, metacognitive, motivational, and emotional behaviors of a novice and expert solver. Evaluate. International Journal of Educational Research and Training, 4(1), 37-66.
- [3] Santosa, C. A. H. F., Prabawanto, S., and Marethi, I. (2019). Fostering germline load by encouraging self-explanation in numeracy instruction. Indonesian Journal on Learning and Advanced Education (IJOLAE), 1(1), 37-47. 47.

73 Feedback optimal control of a Multi-Objective problem modeling the wastewater treatment.

Hicham HAKIMI¹, Mustapha Serhani^{2,*}

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Moulay Ismail, Meknes, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Moulay Ismail, Meknes, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: hicham.hakimi@edu.umi.ac.ma

Abstract

The process of bio-degradation of organic pollutants by fungi is one of the most important mathematical models from biology. Generally, those models involve optimal open-loop controls, although the control of such problems requires closed loop system. In this work, our aim is to find a feedback control strategy for a wastewater treatment station. We propose a nonlinear multi-objective optimal control problem, describing this process, involving a feedback control depending on the state variable of the pollutant. In the first part, we study the existence of a solution of the dynamic using differential inclusion formulation, then we show that the Pareto front is convex, which leads to identify Pareto optimums. Finally we use the Hamilton Jacobi Bellman equations to show that the value function associated with the scalarized problem admits a unique viscosity solution.

Keywords: Multi-objective optimal control, Feedback control, Differential inclusion, Pareto front, Hamilton Jacobi Bellman, viscosity solution.

- [1] I.M. Bulai, F. Spina, G.C. Varese, E. Venturino, Wastewater bioremediation using white rot fungi: validation of a dynamical system with real data obtained in laboratory. Math. Methods Appl. Sci.41, (2018) 4195–4207.
- [2] S. Lenhart, J.T. Workman, Optimal Control Applied to Biological Models. Chapman and Hall/CRC Mathematical and Computational Biology, (2007).
- [3] N. Raïssi, M. Serhani, E. Venturino, Optimizing biological wastewater treatment, J. Rice. di Mathematica., 69 (2020) 629–652.
- [4] M.Serhani, M., Gouzé, J.L., Raïssi, N.: Dynamical study and robustness of a nonlinear wastewater treatment problem. J. Nonlinear Anal. RWA 12, (2011) 487–500.
- [5] E. Trélat, Contrôle optimal : théorie et applications, Edi. Vuibert, Collection "Mathématiques Concrète". ISBN10 : 2711722198 (2008).

74 Cantor-Bendixson derivatives of the spectrum

Zakariae Aznay^{1,*} and Hassan Zariouh²

¹Laboratory (L.A.N.O), Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, Mohammed I University, Oujda 60000 Morocco. aznay.zakariae@ump.ac.ma ²Department of Mathematics (CRMEFO), and laboratory (L.A.N.O), Faculty of Science, Mohammed I University, Oujda 60000 Morocco. h.zariouh@yahoo.fr

Abstract

The purpose of this presentation is to establish characterizations of Cantor-Bendixson derivatives of the spectrum of bounded linear operators by utilizing the concept of almost invertibility. Specifically, we will demonstrate that zero does not belong to the α -th Cantor-Bendixson derivative of T's spectrum, denoted by $\operatorname{acc}^{\alpha}(\sigma(T))$, is equivalent to the impossibility of decomposing T into the direct sum of an invertible operator and an operator with a countable number of elements in its spectrum.

Keywords: Cantor-Bendixon derivative, Almost invertible, Accumulation points, Spectrum

- [1] O. Abad, H. Zguitti, *A note on the generalized Drazin-Riesz invertible operators*, Ann. Funct. Anal. (2017), 12–55.
- [2] Z. Aznay, A. Ouahab, H. Zariouh, On the g_z -Kato decomposition and generalization of Koliha Drazin invertibility, to appear in Filomat (2022).
- [3] Z. Aznay, A. Ouahab, H. Zariouh, *On the index of pseudo B-Fredholm operator*, Monatsh. Math. (2022). https://doi.org/10.1007/s00605-022-01798-8.
- [4] Z. Aznay, A. Ouahab and H. Zariouh, *Almost invertible operators*, arXiv:2211.07736, (2022).
- [5] M. Berkani, On the p-invertibility in rings and Banach algebras, Aequat. Math. (2022).
- [6] A. Dajic, J. Koliha, *The* σ_g -*Drazin inverse and the generalized Mbekhta decomposition*, Integr. equ. oper. theory. **99** (2006), 1–26.
- [7] M. P. Drazin, *Pseudo-inverse in associative rings and semigroups*, Amer. Math. Monthly **65** (1958), 506–514.
- [8] J. Koliha, *A generalized Drazin inverse*, Glasgow Mathematical Journal. **38** (1996), 367–381.
- [9] C. Schmoeger, *On isolated points of the spectrum of a bounded linear operator*, Proc. Amer. Math. Soc. **117** (2003), 715–719.

75 Some Identities of 3-Prime Near-Rings Involving Jordan Ideals and Left multipliers

Abdelkarim BOUA^{1,*}

¹ Polidisciplinary Faculty of Taza, Sidi Mohamed Ben Abdellah University, Fez, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. BOUA : abdelkarimboua@yahoo.fr

Abstract

In this paper we study 3-prime near rings with left multipliers satisfying certain differential identities on Jordan ideals, and we provide examples to show that the assumed restrictions cannot be relaxed.

Keywords: 3-Prime near-rings; Left multipliers; Jordan ideals.

- [1] M. Ashraf and A. Shakir, On (σ, τ) -derivations of prime near rings II, Sarajevo J. Math., 4 (16) (2008), 23-30.
- [2] M. Ashraf and S. Ali, On left multipliers and commutativity of prime rings. Demonstratio Math., 2008, XLI (4), 763-771.
- [3] H. E. Bell and G. Mason, On derivations in near-rings, North-Holand Mathematics Studies, 137 (1987), 31-35.
- [4] H. E. Bell, On Derivations in Near-Rings II. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Netherlands (1997).
- [5] L. Oukhtite, Posner's second theorem for Jordan ideals in rings with involution, Expo. Math., 29 (2011), 415-419
- [6] A. Boua, L. Oukhtite and A. Raji, Jordan ideals and derivations in prime near-rings, Comment. Math. Univ. Carolin, 55 (2) (2014), 131-139.

76 Spectrally starred advertibly complete A-p-normed algebras

Abdellah EL KINANI¹, Abderrahim OUHMIDOU^{1,*}

¹ Université Mohammed V de Rabat, E.N.S de Rabat, B. P. 5118, 10105, Rabat, Maroc.

* *Correspondig author: ouhmidoua@gmail*

Abstract

If $(E, \|.\|_p)$, $0 \le p \le 1$, is an advertible complete *A*-*p*-normed algebra each element of which has a convex spectrum, then *E* modulo its Jacobson radical is isomorphic to \mathbb{C} . In the involutive case, we obtain the same conclusion for an advertible complete *A*-*p*-normed algebra under the convexity hypothesis on the spectrum of each normal element only. If the algebra is additionally hermitian, it suffices to assume that the spectrum of each unitary element is convex. The case of algebras with involution antimorphism are also considered

Keywords: *A-p*-normed algebra, *Q-A-p*-normed algebra, Advertible complete algebra, Starred spectrum, Spectrally convex algebra, Jacobson's radical, Involutive algebra.

- [1] S. Bhatt: Spectrally convex Banach algebras. Indian J. Pure Appl. Math. 10 (1979), no. 6, 726-730.
- [2] I. Kaplansky: Normed algebras. Duke Math, J, 16 (1949), 399-418.
- [3] A. Ouhmidou, A. El Kinani: On Spectrally convex ordinary algebras. Indian J. Pure Appl. Appl. Math. (2021).
- [4] V. Ptak: Banach algebras with involution. Manuscripta Math. 6(1972), 245-290.

77 Subspace- hypercyclicty

Ahmed Toukmati^{1,*}

¹ Faculty of Sciences and Technology, Al Hoceima, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: A. Toukmati: a.toukmati@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

We present an M-hypercyclic semigroups on the separable complex Banach spaces X, withMis a subspace of X. The M-hypercyclicity criteria for semigroups are given, as well as the properties of this class of semigroups .

Keywords: Hypercyclicity. Topologically transitive. M-Hypercyclicity. *C*₀-semigroup.

- [1] S. N. Kruzhkov and I. M. Kolodii, On the theory of embedding of anisotropic Sobolev spaces, Russian Math. Surveys 38 (1983), 188-189.
- [2] A. Kufner and B. Opic, How to define reasonably weighted Sobolev spaces, Commentationes Mathematicae Universitatis Carolinae., 25(3) (1984) 537-554.
- [3] B. Muckenhoupt, Weighted norm inequalities for the hardy maximal function, Trans. Am. Math. Soc., 165 (1972). 207-226.
- [4] S. M. Nikolskii, Imbedding theorems for functions with partial derivatives considered in various metrics, Izd. Akad. Nauk SSSR 22 (1958), 321-336.
- [5] M. Troisi, Teoremi di inclusione per spazi di Sobolev non isotropi, Ricerche Mat. 18 (1969), 3-24.

78 Simultaneous continuous functional calculs and applications

Mohamed Mazighi, Abdellah Elkinani

Université Mohammed V de Rabat, E.N.S de Rabat, B. P. 5118, 10105, Rabat, Maroc. * *Correspondig author: mohamedmazighi6@gmail.com and abdellah.elkinani@um5.ac.ma*

Abstract

We define and study a continuous functional calculus for a commutative family $(a_i)_{i \in I}$ of normal elements of a C^* -algebra. This functional calculus consists in giving a sense to $f(\mathbf{a})$ whenever $\mathbf{a} = (a_i)_{i \in I}$ is a commutative family of normal elements of a C^* -algebra $(A, \|.\|)$ and f is a continuous complex valued function on the simultaneous spectrum $Sp(\mathbf{a})$ of a. So we show that this functional calculus is unique, continuous and satisfies the spectral mapping theorem. Once this functional calculus is defined and studied, we obtain a particular orthonormal basis on a locally Hilbert space.

Keywords: *C**-algebra, Simultaneous spectrum, Continuous functional calculus, Locally Hilbert space..

- [1] H. Buchwalter, D. Tarral, *Théorie spectrale*. Publ. Dép. Math. (Lyon) (N.S.) 1982.
- [2] J. Dixmier, *C**-*algebras*. North-Holland, Amsterdam, 1981.
- [3] R. Dautray, J-L. Lions, *Mathematical Analysis and Computing for Science and Technology*. Vol. 3. Masson, Paris, 1985.
- [4] W. Rudin, Functional Analysis. McGraw-Hill, New York, 1973.

79 Stability and bufircation of fluid drop subjected to a uniform electric field

Youness Filali^{1,*}, Mustapha Er-Riani², Mustapha El Jarroudi²

¹ National School of Applied Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences and Techniques, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tangier, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: youness.filali@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

We theoretically investigate the stability and bufircation of a dielectric drop suspended in a second dielectric liquid subject to a uniform electric field. Axisymmetric equilibrium shapes are found by solving simultaneously the Young-Laplace equation at the interface and Laplace equation for the electric field. Analytical solutions are constructed for the governing nonlinear boundary-value problem using domain perturbation method together with a special type of Hermite–Padé approximation.

Keywords: drop deformation, drop breakup, electrohydrodynamic effect, capillary electric number.

- [1] Brandenbourger, M., Caps, H., Vitry, Y., Dorbolo, S., Electrically charged droplets in microgravity. Microgravity Science and Technology, 29, *N*°3, 229-239 (2017)
- [2] Miksis, M.J.: Shape of a drop in an electric field. Physics of Fluids 24, 1967-1972 (1981)
- [3] Dodgson, V., Sozou, C.: The deformation of a liquid drop by an electric field. ZAMP, 38, 424-432. (1987)
- [4] Shaw, S.J., Shaw, Spelt, P.D.M.: Critical strength of an electric field whereby a bubble can adopt a steady shape. Proc. Roy. Soc.A, Mathematical, Physical and Engineering Sciences, 465, N^o 2110, 3127-3143 (2009)
- [5] Paknemat, H., Pishevar, A.R., Pournaderi, P.: Numerical simulation of drop deformations and breakup modes caused by direct current electric fields. Phys. Fluids 24, 102101 (2012)
- [6] Guttmann, A.J.: Asymptotic analysis of power-series expansions. in Phase Transitions and Critical Phenomena Vol. 13, 1-234, eds C. Domb and J.L Lebowitz (Academic Press, New York) (1989)
- [7] Common, A.K.: Applications of Hermite-Padé approximants to water waves and the harmonic oscillator on a lattice. J. Phys. A 15, 3665-3677 (1982)

80 Jordan product and fixed points preservers

Mhamed Elhodaibi¹, Soufiane Elouazzani^{2,*}

¹ Departement of Mathematics, Labo LIABM Faculty of Sciences 60000 Oujda, Morocco

* Correspondig author: M. Elhodaibi : elouazzani.soufiane@ump.ac.ma

Abstract

Let B(X) be the space of all bounded linear operators on an infnite-dimensional complex Banach space X. For $A \in B(X)$, we denote by F(A) the subspace of fixed points of A. In this paper, we study and characterize all surjective maps ϕ on B(X) satisfying

 $F(\phi(T)\phi(A) + \phi(A)\phi(T)) = F(TA + AT)$

for all $A, T \in B(X)$.

Keywords: Fixed points, Jordan product, Preserver.

- [1] Y. Bouramdane, M. Ech-cherif El Kettani, A. Elhiri, and A. lahssaini (2020). Maps preserving fixed points of generalized product of operators, Proyeccionnes (Antofagasta), 2020, vol. 39, no 5, pp. 1157-1165.
- [2] M. Elhodaibi and S. Elouazzani, Jordan product and inner local spectral radius, Preprint.
- [3] M. Elhodaibi and A. Jaatit, On maps preserving operators of local spectral radius zero, Linear Algebra and its Applications, 2017, vol. 512, pp. 191-201.
- [4] A. A. Jafarian and A. R. Sourour, Linear maps that preserve the com- mutant, double commutant or the lattice of invariant subspaces, Linear and multilinear algebra, 1994, vol. 38, no. 1-2, pp. 117-129.
- [5] C. K. Li, P. Semrl and N. S. Sze, Maps preserving the nilpotency of products of operators, Linear algebra and its applications, 2007, vol. 424, no 1, pp. 222-239.
- [6] C. K. Li, and N. K. Tsing, Linear preserver problems: A brief introduction and some special techniques, Linear algebra and its applications, 1992, vol. 162, pp. 217-235.
- [7] A. Taghavi and R. Hosseinzadeh, Maps preserving the dimension of fixed points of products of operators, Linear and multilinear algebra, 2014, vol. 62, no. 10, pp. 1285-1292.
- [8] A. Taghavi, R. Hosseinzadeh, and V. Darvish, Maps preserving the fixed points of triple Jordan products of operators, Indagationes mathematicae, 2016, vol. 27, no. 3, pp. 850-854.

81 A new approach to improve optimizer performance through algorithms diversification for image reconstruction in diffuse optical tomography

Chakhim Nada^{1,*}, Louzar Mohamed¹, Alaoui Mohammed¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences and Technology, University of Hassan First, Settat, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: N. Chakhim : nada.chakhim@gmail.com

Abstract

In this work, we explore a different way to construct optimizer algorithms for solving the inverse problem of Diffuse Optical Tomography by using diversification of two stochastic gradient-based algorithms, namely NADAM and AMSGrad. We will study the speed of convergence of the proposed newbreed of algorithms, alsowe will discuss the quality of reconstructed images in both cases of free of noise and noisy measurement data. For analysis and exploration of the potential of the proposed algorithm, we use statistical simulations and analysis approach.

Keywords: Diffuse optical tomography, inverse problem, diversification, random switching algorithm, image reconstruction, statistical simulation.

- [1] N. Chakhim, M. Louzar, A. Lamnii, M. Alaoui, Image reconstruction in diffuse optical tomography using adaptive moment gradient based optimizers: a statistical study. Appl. Sci. 10(24) (2020), 9117.
- [2] T. Dozat, Incorporating nesterov momentum into adam. In: Proceedings of the ICLR 2016 Workshop Track.
- [3] Ruder, An overview of gradient descent optimization algorithms, ArXiv : 1609.04747. (2017).

82 On the Radial Solutions of a *p*-Laplace Equation with Hardy Potential

Bakhadda M. and Bouzelmate A.

LaR2A Laboratory, Faculty of Sciences, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco

Abstract

In this paper, we study the asymptotic behavior of radial solutions of the following quasi-linear equation with Hardy potential

$$\Delta_p u + h(|x|) |u|^{p-2} u = 0, \quad x \in \mathbb{R}^N - \{0\},$$

where 2 , <math>h is a radial function on $\mathbb{R}^N - \{0\}$ such that $h(|x|) = \gamma |x|^{-p}$, $\gamma > 0$ and $\Delta_p u = div (|\nabla u|^{p-2} \nabla u)$ is the p-Laplacian operator. The study strongly depends on the sign of $\gamma - (\sigma/p^*)^p$ where $\sigma = (N - p)/(p - 1)$ and $p^* = p/(p - 1)$.

Keywords: Quasi-Linear Equation, p-Laplacian, Hardy Potential, Radial Solutions, Dynamical System, Characteristic Equation, Asymptotic Behavior.

83 Explicit formulas of the addition law on the elliptic curve over a special nonlocal ring

Abdelhamid Tadmori¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences and Technology, Al Hoceima, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: a.tadmori@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we come to study some properties of elliptic curves over a nonlocal ring $A = \mathbb{F}_q[\varepsilon]$; $\varepsilon^3 = \varepsilon^2$, where \mathbb{F}_q is the finite field of q elements, and q is a power of a prime integer $p \ge 5$. We discuss, and we define here a new addition law on such elliptic curve over this special ring. More precisely we show that such elliptic curve over A is isomorphic to the product of an elliptic curve over the field F_q and one over the local ring $\frac{\mathbb{F}_{2d}[X]}{(X^2)}$. This allows us to compute the addition points over these elliptic curves, and to propose such protocol cryptographic.

Keywords: Finite ring, Nonlocal ring, Elliptic cuve, Cryptography.

- [1] Atiyah M. F. and Macdonald I. G: Introduction to Commutative Algebra. Addison-Wesley Publishing Co, Reading Massachusetts-Menlo Park, California (1969).
- [2] A.Boulbot, A.Chillali and A.Mouhib: Elliptic curves over the ring $\mathbb{F}_q[e]; e^3 = e^2$. Gulf Journal of Mathematics 4 (4), 123–129 (2016).
- [3] Claus-Peter Schnorr: Efficient Identification and Signatures for Smart Cards. Editor, Gilles Brassard CRYPTO'89 1989, LNCS, vol. 435, pp. 239–252. Springer, Heidelberg, Aug. (1990).
- [4] Marie VIRAT: Courbes elliptiques sur un anneau et applications cryptographiques. thèse. Université de Nice-Sophia Antipolis-UFR Sciences Ecole Doctorale de Sciences Fondamentales Appliquées, (2009).
- [5] C.Popescu: An Identification Scheme Based on the Elliptic Curve Discrete Logarithm Problem. In: 4th International Conference/Exhibition on proceeding, pp. 624–625. High Performance Computing in the Asia-Pacific Region, 2000. Proceedings, Vol. 2, (2000).
- [6] J.H. Silverman: Advanced Topics in the Arithmetic of Elliptic Curves. Graduate Texts in Mathematcs. Springer,(1994).

84 On Galois Extensions of Graded Rings

Mohammed Charkani^{1,*}, Abdewahed Acharky²

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* *Correspondig author:*

Abstract

Throughout this work, $(\Gamma, +)$ is an abelien group and $R = \bigoplus_{\lambda \in \Gamma} R_{\gamma}$ is a commutative Γ -graded ring. Let B be an R_0 -algebra and $A = R \otimes_{R_0} B$ the graded algebra tensor product of R and B. In this paper, we study galois theory of some strongly graded algebra. In particular, we show that if G is a finite subgroup of Aut B and G' its image in AUTA then B is a G-Galois extension of the ring R_0 if and only if A is a G-Galois extension of the ring R. As an application we establish some new results on G-Galois extension of commutative CP-graded rings and some commutative algebra over graded field.

Keywords: Quasilinear parabolic equations, non-coercive problems, renormalized solutions.

- Y. Akdim, C.Allalou, N. El gorch, M. Mekkour: Entropy Solutions of Nonlinear p(x)-Parabolic InequalitiesNonlinear. Dynamics and Systems Theory, 18 (2) (2018) 1-23.
- [2] A. Benkirane , Y. El Hadfi, M. El Moumni :Existence results for doubly nonlinear parabolic equations with two lower odrer terms and L1-data.Ukrainian Mathematical Journal October 2019.
- [3] M. Chrif, S.E. Manouni, H. Hjiaj : On the study of strongly parabolic problems involving anisotropic operators in L1. Monatsh Math 195, 611-647 (2021).
- [4] J. L. Lions, Quelques Methodes de Résolution des Problèmes aux Limites non Linéaires, Dunodet Gauthiers-Villars, Paris, 1969.
85 Stabilization analysis of a mosquito-borne disease mathematical model with discontinuous vaccination and treatment feedback strategies

LAZAAR OUSSAMA 1,* , SERHANI MUSTAPHA 2

¹ Faculty od sciences, Moulay Ismail University, Meknes, Morocco

¹ FSJES, Moulay Ismail University, Meknes, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: O. LAZAAR : o.lazaar@edu.umi.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we conduct a stabilization analysis of a mosquito-borne disease mathematical model. The model incorporates a discontinuous feedback mechanism that includes vaccination and treatment. In addition, we formulated it as a system of differential equations that capture the interactions between the human and mosquito populations. To account for the non-linear relationship between mosquito growth and resource consumption, we incorporate general Holling functions in the mosquito subsystem. Our objective is to identify the conditions under which the system will globally asymptotically converge to an almost disease-free equilibrium. The theoretical analysis draws on the Filippov solution, Lyapunov functions, and LaSalle's invariance principle. By incorporating general Holling functions, we improve the accuracy of the model and obtain a more realistic representation of the interactions between the mosquito population and its environment. This study highlights the importance of stabilization analysis when implementing effective interventions against mosquito-borne diseases.

Keywords: Mosquito-Borne disease, Discontinuous Feedback, Filippov solution, Stabilization theory, Lyapunov functions.

- Z. Feng et al. A Mosquito-Borne Disease Model with Non-exponentially Distributed Infection and Treatment Stages. en. In: Journal of Dynamics and Differential Equations 33.4 (Dec. 2021), pp. 1679-1709.
- [2] A. F. Filippov. Differential Equations with Discontinuous Righthand Sides. Ed. by F. M. Arscott and M. Hazewinkel.Vol. 18. Mathematics and Its Applications. Dordrecht: Springer Netherlands, 1988.
- [3] Ramakant Prasad et al. Mathematical modeling in perspective of vector-borne viral infections: a review. In: Beni-Suef University Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences 11.1 (2022), p. 102. issn: 2314-8535.

86 Fixed Point Theorem And Application To Integral Equations

Hamza El Bazi^{1,*}, Abdellatif Sadrati²

¹ Faculty of technical Sciences, University Moulay Ismal, Errachidia, Morocco

² Faculty of technical Sciences, University Moulay Ismal, Errachidia, Morocco

* Correspondig author: H. El Bazi : hamza.elbazi.uae@gmail.com

Abstract

The existence of a fixed point for mixed monotone nearly asymptotically nonexpansive mappings is the concern of the present work. We extend and generalize some well-known results concerning nearly asymptotically nonexpansive mappings in a uniformly convex hyperbolic metric space. As application of our obtained results, we study the existence of solutions for the following nonlinear integral equation

$$x(t) = \int_0^1 a(t,s) f(s,x(s)) g(x(s)) \, ds$$

Keywords: Fixed point theorem, Hyperbolic metric space, Monotone nearly asymptotically nonexpansive operator, Integral equation.

- H. El Bazi, A. Sadrati; Fixed point theorem for mixed monotone nearly asymptotically nonexpansive mappings and applications to integral equations, Electronic Journal of Differential Equations. Vol. 2022 (2022), No. 66, pp. 1-14.
- [2] S. Aggarwal, Izhar Uddin and J. Nieto; A fixed-point theorem for monotone nearly asymptotically nonexpansive mappings, J. Fixed Point Theory Appl. (2019).

87 Existence result for some coupled nonlinear parabolic systems in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces

Jabir OUAZZANI CHAHDI^{1,*}, Mohamed BOURAHMA², Hassane HJIAJ¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

¹ Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Sidi Mohammed Benabdellah, Fez, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: J. OUAZZANI CHAHDI jabir1984@gmail.com

Abstract

Consider the nonlinear parabolic system

$$\begin{cases} \frac{\partial b_i(x,u_i)}{\partial t} - \operatorname{div}\left(\mathcal{A}(x,t,u_i,\nabla u_i) + \Phi_i(x,t,u_i)\right) + f_i(x,u_1,u_2) = 0 & \text{in } Q_T \\ u_i = 0 & \text{on } \Gamma \\ b_i(x,u_i)(t=0) = b_i(x,u_{i,0}) & \text{in } \Omega, \end{cases}$$

where i = 1, 2. In this paper we deal with the renormalized solution for the above system in Orlicz-Sobolev spaces where f_i is a Carathéodory function satisfying some growth assumptions. The main term which contains the space derivatives and a non-coercive lower order term are considered in divergence form satisfying only the original Orlicz growths.

Keywords: Parabolic systems, Orlicz growths, Orlicz-Sobolev spaces, renormalized solutions.

- [1] Aberqi, A., Bennouna, J. and Redwane, H.: A Nonlinear Parabolic Problems with Lower Order Terms and Measure Data, Thai Journal of Mathematics Volume 14 Number 1,(2016) 115-130
- [2] Adams, R.: Sobolev spaces, Academic Press Inc, New York, (1975)
- [3] Azroul, E., Redwane, H. and Rhoudaf, M.: *Existence of a Renormalized solution for a class of nonlinear parabolic Equations in Orlicz Spaces*, Port. Math. 66 (1),(2009) 29-63
- [4] Blanchard, D. and Murat, F.: Renormalized Solutions of Nonlinear Parabolic Problems with L¹ Data, Existence and Uniqueness, Proc. R. Soc. Edinburgh Sect. A 127,(1997) 1137-1152
- [5] Blanchard, D. and Porretta, A.: *A Stefan Problems with Diffusion and Convection*, Differ. Equ. 210,(2005) 383-428
- [6] Bourahma, M. Benkirane, A. Bennouna, J.: Existence of renormalized solutions for some nonlinear elliptic equations in Orlicz spaces, J. Rend. Circ. Mat. Palermo, II. Ser (2019). https://doi.org/10.1007/s12215-019-00399-z

88 Positive Solutions of an Elliptic Equation Involving a Sign-Changing Potential and a gradient term

Bouzelmate A.¹, El Baghouri H.¹, Gmira A.¹

¹LaR2A Laboratory, Faculty of Sciences, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco

Abstract

The objective of this paper is to investigate the following elliptic singular Laplacian equation

$$\Delta u - |\nabla u|^q + u^p - u^{-\delta} = 0 \text{ in } \mathbb{R}^{\mathbb{N}},$$

where $N \ge 1, 1 < q < p$ and $\delta > 2$.

Our main contributions consist of establishing the existence of an entire strictly positive solution and analyzing certain properties of its asymptotic behavior, particularly when it exhibits monotonicity.

Keywords: Elliptic equation; Sign-Changing potential, Gradient term; Radial solution; Banach Fixed Point Theorem; Energy Function; Oscillation Methods.

89 ON BOUNDED OPERATORS OF BANACH-JORDAN SYSTEMS

CHAFIKA ZARHOUTI^{1,*}

¹ Center of Higher Education and Training (CRMEFTTH)? Department of Mathematics and Computing, angier, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: C. ZARHOUTI / chafikazarhouticrmef@gmail.com*

Abstract

The goal of this paper consists of proving the inclusion of separating subspace of epimorphisms onto a Banach-Jordan system (pair or algebra) in its Jacobson radical. This yields Johnson's Theorem for epimorphisms onto Banach-Jordan systems, namely the uniqueness of their complete norm topology.

Keywords: Banach-Jordan pair, Banach-Jordan algebra, epimorphism, separating subspace, automatic continuity

References

[1] B. Aupetit, The uniqueness of complete norm topology in Banach algebras and Banach-Jordan algebras, *J. Func. Analysis* **47**, 1-6 (1982). [2] A. D'Amour and K. McCrimmon, The local algebra of a Jordan system, *J. algebra* **177** (1995), 199-239. [3] A. Fernandez Lopez, H. Marhnine and C. Zarhouti, Derivations on Banach-Jordan pairs, *Quart. J. Math.* **52** (2001), 269-283. [4] G. Hessenberger, Banach-Jordan-Paare (Diplomarbeit, Universität Innsbruck, 1992).

90 SOME NEW RESULTS ON (ψ_+, ψ_-) -DERIVATIONS OF BANACH-JORDAN SYSTEM

HASSAN MARHNINE^{1,*}

¹ Centre of Higher Education and Training CRMEF, Department of Mathematics and Computing, R. T. of Didactic Engineering of Mathematics and Transverscal Disciplines, Tangier, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: H. MARHNINE / radimarhn@hotmail.com

Abstract

Generalized Leibniz rule for a ψ -derivation $D = (D_+, D_-)$ on a Jordan pair $V = (V^+, V^-)$ is established. In a second step a local property of the ψ -derivation $D = (D_+, D_-)$ is investigated, namely the quasinilpotency of couples (D_+a, D_-b) of the Banach-Jordan pair $V = (V^+, V^-)$ under the condition $D_+^2 a = D_-^2 b = 0$. An automatic continuity result is also given.

Keywords: Homomorphism, derivation, ψ -derivation, generalized Leibniz rule, Jordan algebra, Jordan pair, Banach-Jordan pair

References

[1] M. Ashraf and N. Rehman, On $(\sigma - \tau)$ -derivations in prime rings, Arch. Math. (BRNO) **38**, (2002), 259–264. [2] C. Bak, Linear θ -derivations on JB*-triples, *J. Chu. Math. Soc.* **19**, (2006), No. **1**, 27-36. [3] C. Bak and M. S. Moslehian, On the stability of θ -derivations on JB*-triples, *Bull. Braz. Math. Soc.* **37** (2006), No. **1**, 1-13. [4] N. Boudi, H. Marhnine and C. Zarhouti, Additive derivations on Banach-Jordan pairs, *Comm. in Algebra*, **32**, (2004), No. **9**, 3609-3625.

91 The Aluthge and mean transform on certain class of bounded linear operators

Fadil Chabbabi

Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: f.chabbabi@uae.ac.ma*

Abstract

Let us consider B(H) the full algebra of bounded linear operator on a Hilbert space H. For an operator $T \in B(H)$, we consider its polar decomposition T = V|T|, where $V \in B(H)$ is the associate partial isometry with the kernel condition, and |T| is the square root of the operator T^*T . The Aluthge transform $\Delta(T)$ and the Mean transform \hat{T} of the operator T are respectively defined by :

$$\Delta(T) = |T|^{\frac{1}{2}} V |T|^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
 and $\widehat{T} = \frac{V|T| + |T|V}{2}$.

In this talk, we discuss the image and preimage by Aluthge and mean transform of some class of operators such as positive, normal, unitary, hyponormal, and co-hyponormal operators.

Keywords: Bounded Operators, Polar decomposition, Aluthge transform, Mean transform, Class of bounded operators.

- [1] A. Aluthge, On p-hyponormal operators for 0 , Integral Equations Operator Theory 13 (1990), 307-315.
- [2] F. Chabbabi, R.E. Curto and M. Mbekhta, The mean transform and the mean limit of an operator, Proc. Amer. Math. Soc. 147 (2019), 1119-1133.
- [3] Fadil Chabbabi and Maëva Ostermann, On the image of the mean transform, Proc. Amer. Math. Soc. (2023).
- [4] F. Chabbabi, M. Mbekhta, Polar decomposition, Aluthge and mean transforms, Linear and multilinear algebra and function spaces, 2020, 89-107.

92 Application of J.F.Colombeau theory

ABDELAZIZ MOUJAHID¹

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

Abstract

In this paper we proved some importance proprieties of Colombeau algebra, we proved the existence and uniqueness of solution of transport equation with variable speed and initial data in the Colombeau algebra G. We proved the association of the generalized solution with the classical solution.

Keywords: Colombeau algebra , Generalized solution , Association , Transport equation .

- [1] Colombeau, J.F.: Elementary Introduction in New Generalized Functions. North Holland, Amsterdam (1985).
- [2] Oberguggenberger, M.: Generalized functions in nonlinear models a survey. Nonlinear Anal. 47, 5029-5040 (2001).
- [3] Stojanovic, M.: Nonlinear Schrodinger equation with singular potential and initial data. Nonlinear Anal. 64, 1460-1474 (2006).

93 Numerical methods for an inverse shape design problem with Robin boundary condition

Youness El Yazidi

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences, University Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

Abstract

The purpose of this study is to perform the mathematical analysis of a free boundary problem with robin boundary condition, besides to the development and comparison of different methods for solving this inverse problem. First, the shape optimization problem is established, then we prove the existence of an optimal solution. The first conditions of optimality are computed, after that we compute the shape gradient and hessian. The finite element method is proposed for the discretization of the state and adjoint equations. Two deterministic approaches are considered, the conjugate gradient and the quasi newton methods, also we perform their convergence analysis. Two heuristic approaches are proposed, the differential evolution and genetic algorithms. Besides we propose a hybrid minimization technique, which is a combination of differential evolution with the quasi newton method. Several numerical examples are established to prove the validity of proposed approaches, then a comparison of the obtained results is realized to show the differences and deduce which approach is robust over the rest.

Keywords: Conjugate Gradient, Differential Evolution, Free Boundary problem, Hybrid methods, Genetic Algorithms, Quasi Newton, Shape Optimization.

- Y.H. DAI, Convergence Analysis of Nonlinear Conjugate Gradient Methods. Optimization and Regularization for Computational Inverse Problems and Applications, (2010), 157–181.
- [2] Y. EL YAZIDI, A. ELLABIB, An iterative method for optimal control of bilateral free boundaries problem. Mathematical Methods in Applied Sciences, 44(14) (2021), 11664– 11683.
- [3] Y. EL YAZIDI, A. ELLABIB, Augmented Lagrangian approach for a bilateral free boundary *problem*. Journal of Applied Mathematics and Computing, **67** (2021), 69–88.
- [4] D.E. GOLDBERG, Genetic Algorithm in search, optimisation, and machine learning, Addison-Wesley Longman Publishing Co, (1989).
- [5] J. NOCEDAL, S.J. WRIGHT, Numerical Optimization, Springer, New York, (2006).
- [6] S. SALHI, *Heuristic Search The Emerging Science of Problem Solving*, Palgrave Macmillan, (2017).

94 Combining Non-Classical Method and Finite Element Method for Efficient Numerical Solution of Time-Fractional Diffusion Equation

Ahdia Achabbak^{1,*}, Naji Yebari², Mohammed Seaid³

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

³ School of Engineering and Computing Sciences, University of Durham, Durham DH1 3LE, UK.

* Correspondig author: A. Achabbak : ahdia.achabbak@etu.uae.ac.ma

Abstract

In this paper, we consider the numerical resolution of a time-fractional diffusion equation using the finite element method in space and an improved quadrature method in time. The proposed method is based on the work of Carolin Birk and Chongmin Song[2], which uses a non-classical kernel function to approximate the Caputo fractional derivative. In our approach, we extend this idea by incorporating the finite element method in space to discretize the partial differential equation. In addition, we use an improved quadrature method to approximate the time fractional derivative in the temporal domain. Our numerical experiments demonstrate that our proposed method is more efficient than the standard direct method. Specifically, our new scheme has the same order of convergence as the standard direct scheme, but with a much smaller step size in time and a geometrically smaller computational complexity in space. As a result, our proposed method significantly reduces the CPU time compared to the standard direct scheme. We provide numerical experiments to illustrate the effectiveness of our proposed method.

Keywords: Anisotropic Sobolev spaces, non-coercive quasilinear elliptic equation, unilateral problems, entropy solutions.

- [1] JIANG, Shidong, ZHANG, Jiwei, ZHANG, Qian, et al. Fast evaluation of the Caputo fractional derivative and its applications to fractional diffusion equations. Communications in Computational Physics, 2017, vol. 21, no 3, p. 650-678.
- [2] BIRK, Carolin et SONG, Chongmin. An improved non-classical method for the solution of fractional differential equations. Computational Mechanics, 2010, vol. 46, no 5, p. 721-734
- [3] CAO, Junying et XU, Chuanju. A high order schema for the numerical solution of the fractional ordinary differential equations. Journal of Computational Physics, 2013, vol. 238, p. 154-168.

95 On the Positive Radial Solutions of p-Laplacien Problem on an Unbounded Exterior Domain

A. Bouzelmate, F. Sennouni, H. El Baghouri

LaR2A Laboratory, Faculty of Sciences, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan 93000, Morocco

Abstract

The present paper establishes the existence of positive radial solutions to the p-Laplacien equation: $\Delta_p u - u + u^q = 0$, p > 2 and q > 1, on an unbounded exterior domain $\Omega_e \subset \mathbb{R}^N$, with zero initial datum.

First, we provided a result on the existence of positive radial solutions using a shooting method and an associated energy function. Second we derived some important results on the asymptotic behavior of global solutions at infinity.

Keywords: p-Laplacian operator, Radial solution, Existence of solutions, Shooting method, Energy function, Asymptotic behaviour.

- Bouzelmate, A., Gmira, A., Reyes, G.: Radial selfsimilar solutions of a nonlinear Ornstein-Uhlenbeck equation. Electronic Journal of Differential Equations, 67, 1– 21 (2007).
- [2] Coffman, C.V.: Uniqueness of the ground state solution for $\Delta u u + u^3 = 0$ and a variational characterization of other solutions: Arch. Rational Mech. Anal.. 46, 81–95 (1972).
- [3] Jiu, Q., Su, J.: Existence and multiplicity results for Dirichlet problems with p-Laplacian. Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications. 281, 587-601 (2003).
- [4] McLeod, K., Serrin, J.: Uniqueness of positive radial solutions of $\Delta u + f(u) = 0$ in \mathbb{R}^n . Arch. Rational Mech. Anal. 99, 115–145 (1987).
- [5] Van der Waals, J. D., Kohnstamm, R.: In Lehrbuchder Thermnodynamik. Maas van Fuchtelen, Leipzig, Federal Republic of Germany. Vol.1, (1908).

96 Improved statistical and machine learning methods for images database classification

ISMAIL JAMIAI^{1,*}, ABDELMAJID OMARI²

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: Ismail JAMIAI ijamiai@uae.ac.ma

Abstract

The image classification is a classical problem of image processing, computer vision and machine learning fields. In this paper we study the image classification using deep learning. We use ANN architecture with convolutional neural networks for this purpose. Four test images are selected from the ImageNet database for the classification purpose. We cropped the images for various portion areas and conducted experiments. The results show the effectiveness of deep learning based image classification using ANN.

Keywords: Machine Learning, images classification, optimization, statistical methods, Convolutional neural networks.

- [1] Abhinav N Patil, *Image recognition using Machine Learning*, International Journal of Engineering Applied Sciences and Technology Volume 6 (2019), No. 1, 195-198.
- [2] M. Krishna, M. Neelima, M. Harshali, V. Rao, *Image classification using Deep learn-ing*. International Journal of Engineering & Technology 7 (2018), no. 2-7, 614-617.
- [3] Mingyuan Xin and Yong Wang, *Research on image classification model based on deep convolution neural network*, Journal on Image and Video Processing Volume 40, 2019.

97 An existence result for two-dimensional parabolic integrodifferential equations involving CEV model

BRAHIM JARMOUNI^{1,*}, HASSANE HJIAJ²

¹ Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

² Faculty of Science, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: B. JARMOUNI : brahimjarmouni@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, we present an existence result of weak solutions for some parabolic equations involving the so-called CEV model with jumps

Keywords: Option pricing, CEV model, model with jumps, integro-differential degenerate parabolic equations.

- [1] R. Adams. Sobolev Spaces. Academic Press, 1975.
- [2] F. Black and M. Scholes. The valuation of options and corporate liability. Journal of Political Economy, 81, 63–654, 1973.
- [3] Stewart N. Ethier and Thomas G. Kurtz. Markov Processes: Characterization and Conver- gence. Wiley, 2005.
- [4] I. Florescu and M.C. Mariani. Solutions to an integro-differential parabolic problem arising on financial mathematics. Electronic Journal of Differential Equations, 2010(62), 1-10, 2010

98 Pricing American options with irregular Payoff via reflected BSDEs

Mohamed Marzougue

Faculty of Sciences, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Tetouan, Morocco. * *Correspondig author: m.marzougue@uae.ac.ma*

Abstract

We formulate the value function of American options with irregular Payoff in term of the unique solution of an extended reflected backward stochastic differential equations (RBSDEs in short) where the barrier process is assumed to be regular (with regulated trajectories).

Keywords: American options, irregular Payoff, Reflected BSDEs.

- [1] N. El Karoui, S. Peng, and M. C. Quenez (1997), Backward stochastic differential Equations in finance. Mathematical Finance, volume 7, No 1, pp. 1-71.
- [2] N. El Karoui, S. Hamadène and A. Matoussi (2008), Backward stochastic differential Equations and applications, Indifference Pricing: Theory and Applications (R. Carmona, ed.), Springer-Verlag, pp. 267-320.
- [3] M. Marzougue (2020). A note on optional Snell envelopes and reflected backward SDEs. Statistics and Probability Letters, 165, 108833.
- [4] M. Marzougue (2023). Non-linear Dynkin games over split stopping times. Statistics and Probability Letters, 193, 109721.

99 ESTIMATION OF MISSING ELEMENTS IN PAIRWISE COMPARISON MATRIX USING GENETIC ALGO-RITHM

Tajani Z.¹, Tajani C.², El Khatabi I.², Sabbane M.¹

¹ Faculty of sciences, Moulay Ismail University Avenue Zitoune, 11201, Meknes, Morocco

²Polydisciplinary faculty of Larache, Abdelmalek Essaadi University, Omar Ben Abdelaziz Avenue, 92004, Larache, Morocco

Abstract

This paper concerns the incomplete pairwise comparison matrix produced from judgments of experts in the Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP). In such situation, we have to estimate the missing elements with suitable values by ensuring the consistency of the pairwise matrix. Metaheuristics are powerful tool to solve optimization problems. Then, improved genetic algorithm (GA) is proposed to recover the missing judgments until a satisfactory level of consistency is reached. Experiment results are performed with incomplete pairwise matrices with different sizes showing the effective-ness of our algorithm.

Keywords: Genetic Algorithm, Pairwise Matrix, Analytic Hierarchy Process, Decision theory

100 Generalized Solution of Burger Equation

Soukaina Sadek^{1,*}, Lalla Saadia Chadli¹, Abdelaziz Moujahid², Said Melliani¹

¹ Faculty of Sciences and Technology, University Sultan Moulay Slimane, Beni Mellal, Morocco.

² Faculty of Sciences, University of Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco.

* Correspondig author: S. Sadek : soukaina.sadek.bm@gmail.com

Abstract

In this paper, the existence and uniqueness of the generalized solution of the Burger equation is studied with initial conditions are distributions (elements of Colombeau algebra). Then we study the association concept with the classical solution.

Keywords: Burger equation, Generalized solution, Distributions, Colombeau algebra, Association.

- [1] J. F. Colombeau, New generalized functions and multiplication of distributions. Notas de matematica 90 North-Holland mathematics studies84. North- Holland(1984).
- [2] J.F. Colombeau, Elementary Introduction to New Generalized Function. North-Holland(1985).
- [3] J.F. Colombeau, Multiplication of Distributions. LNM,volume(1532).Springer, Heidelberg(1992).
- [4] M. Oberguggenberger, Y.G.Wang, Delta-waves for semi linear hyperbolic Cauchy problems. Math. Nachr.166(1994), 317-327.
- [5] A. E. Hurd and D. H. Sattinger, Questions of existence and uniqueness for hyperbolic equations with discontinuous coefficients, 132 (1968), 159-174.
- [6] L.S. Chadli, S. Melliani, A. Moujahid, Generalized Solution Of A Mixed Problem For Linear Hyperbolic System, International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, (2014).
- [7] M. Oberguggenberger, Generalized solutions to semilinear hyperbolic systems. Monatsheft Math.103,(1987),133-144.
- [8] M. Oberguggenberger. Generalized functions in nonlinear models a survey, Nonlinear Analysis 47(2001),5049-5040.

101 Generalized Solution of Burger Equation

L.S. Chadli, A. Moujahid, S. Melliani and S. Sadek*

Laboratory of Applied Mathematics and computing sciences, Faculty of Sciences and Technologies, Sultan Moulay Slimane University, Beni Mellal

Abstract

In this paper, the existence and uniqueness of the generalized solution of the Burger equation is studied with initial conditions are distributions (elements of Colombeau algebra). Then we study the association concept with the classical solution.

- [1] J. F. Colombeau, New generalized functions and multiplication of distributions.Notas de matematica 90 North-Holland mathematics studies84. NorthHolland(1984).
- [2] J.F. Colombeau, Elementary Introduction to New Generalized Function. North-Holland(1985).
- [3] J.F. Colombeau, Multiplication of Distributions. LNM,volume(1532).Springer, Heidelberg(1992).
- [4] M. Oberguggenberger, Y.G. Wang, Delta-waves for semi linear hyperbolic Cauchy problems. Math. Nachr.166(1994), 317-327.
- [5] A. E. Hurd and D. H. Sattinger, Questions of existence and uniqueness for hyperbolic equations with discontinuous coefficients, 132 (1968), 159-174.
- [6] L.S. Chadli, S. Melliani, A. Moujahid, Generalized Solution Of A Mixed Problem For Linear Hyperbolic System, International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics, (2014).
- [7] M. Oberguggenberger, Generalized solutions to semilinear hyperbolic systems. Monatsheft Math.103,(1987),133-144.
- [8] M. Oberguggenberger. Generalized functions in nonlinear models a survey, Nonlinear Analysis 47(2001),5049-5040.

102 Periodic solutions in shifts δt **for impulsive neutral dynamic equations with infinite delay on time scales**

Mohamed LAHROUZ and Mohamed EL AMRI

Department of Mathematics, Faculty of science, University Abdelmalek Essaadi, Tetouan, Morocco

Abstract

Let Π be a periodic time scale in shift δ_{\pm} . We use the Krasnoselskii's fixed point theorem to show that the impulsive neutral dynamic equations with infinite delay

$$\begin{cases} x^{\Delta}(t) = -A(t)x^{\sigma}(t) + f^{\Delta}(t, x(t-h(t))) + \int_{-\infty}^{t} B(t, s)g(x(s))\Delta s, \quad t_k \neq t \in \Pi, \\ x(t_k^+) - x(t_k^-) = I_k(x(t_k)), \quad k \in \mathbb{Z}^+. \end{cases}$$

have a periodic solution in shift δ_{\pm} . Under a slightly stringent conditions we show that the periodic solution in shifts δ_{\pm} is unique using the contraction mapping principle.

Keywords: Impulse, delta dynamic equation, periodic solution, shift operator, Krasnoselskii's fixed point theorem, time scale.



Franco-Moroccan Mathematics Days Faculty of Sciences - Tetouan, Abdelmalek Essaadi University March 13-16, 2023

